UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549
FORM 10-K
(Mark One)
X
ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934
For the Fiscal Year ended December 31, 2010
OR
TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934
Commission File Number 1-7908
ADAMS RESOURCES & ENERGY, INC.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)
Delaware

74-1753147

(State of Incorporation)

(I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

4400 Post Oak Pkwy Ste 2700
Houston, Texas
(Address of Principal executive offices)

77027
(Zip Code)

Registrant's telephone number, including area code: (713) 881-3600
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:
Title of each class
Common Stock, $.10 Par Value

Name of each exchange on which registered
NYSE Amex

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act.
YES ___NO _X_
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the
Exchange Act. YES ____ NO _X_
Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to
file such reports, and (2) has been subject to the filing requirements for the past 90 days. YES_X_ NO ___
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every
Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this chapter)
during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files).
YES_X_ NO ___
Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein, and
will not be contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by
reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. _X_
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, or a non-accelerated filer, or a
smaller reporting company. See definition of “large accelerated filer” and “accelerated filer and smaller reporting company”
in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.
Large accelerated filer ____
Accelerated filer ____
Non-accelerated filer _X_

Smaller reporting company _____

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined by Rule 12b-2 of the Act).
YES ___NO _X_
The aggregate market value of the voting and non-voting common equity held by nonaffiliates as of the close of business on
June 30, 2010 was $37,642,446 based on the closing price of $18.00 per one share of common stock as reported on the NYSE
AMEX Exchange for such date. A total of 4,217,596 shares of Common Stock were outstanding at March 10, 2010.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE
Portions of the Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held May 18, 2011 are incorporated
by reference into Part III of this report.

PART I
Items 1 and 2. BUSINESS AND PROPERTIES

Forward-Looking Statements –Safe Harbor Provisions
This annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2010 contains certain forward-looking
statements covered by the safe harbors provided under Federal securities law and regulations. To the extent such
statements are not recitations of historical fact, forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties. In
particular, statements under the captions (a) Production and Reserve Information, (b) Regulatory Status and
Potential Environmental Liability, (c) Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results
of Operations, (d) Critical Accounting Policies and Use of Estimates, (e) Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures
about Market Risk, (f) Income Taxes, (g) Concentration of Credit Risk, (h) Price Risk Management Activities,
and (i) Commitments and Contingencies, among others, contain forward-looking statements. Where the
Company expresses an expectation or belief regarding future results or events, such expression is made in good
faith and believed to have a reasonable basis in fact. However, there can be no assurance that such expectation or
belief will actually result or be achieved.
With the uncertainties of forward looking statements in mind, the reader should consider the risks
discussed elsewhere in this report and other documents filed by the Company with the Securities and Exchange
Commission from time to time and the important factors described under “Item 1A. Risk Factors” that could
cause actual results to differ materially from those expressed in any forward-looking statement made by or on
behalf of the Company.
Business Activities
Adams Resources & Energy, Inc. (“ARE”) and its subsidiaries, collectively (the "Company"), are
engaged in the business of marketing crude oil, natural gas and petroleum products, tank truck transportation of
liquid chemicals, and oil and gas exploration and production. Adams Resources & Energy, Inc. is a Delaware
corporation organized in 1973. The Company’s headquarters are located in 20,700 square feet of leased office
space at 4400 Post Oak Parkway, Suite 2700, Houston, Texas 77027 and the telephone number of that address is
(713) 881-3600. The revenues, operating results and identifiable assets of each industry segment for the three
years ended December 31, 2010 are set forth in Note (8) of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included
elsewhere herein.
Marketing Segment Subsidiaries
Gulfmark Energy, Inc. (“Gulfmark”), a subsidiary of ARE, purchases crude oil and arranges sales and
deliveries to refiners and other customers. Activity is concentrated primarily onshore in Texas and Louisiana with
additional operations in Michigan and New Mexico. During 2010, Gulfmark purchased approximately 69,000
barrels per day of crude oil at the wellhead or lease level. Gulfmark also operates 131 tractor-trailer rigs and
maintains over 47 pipeline inventory locations or injection stations. Gulfmark has the ability to barge oil from
three oil storage facilities along the intercoastal waterway of Texas and Louisiana and maintains 75,000 barrels of
storage capacity at certain of the dock facilities in order to access waterborne markets for its products. Gulfmark
arranges transportation for sales to customers or enters into exchange transactions with third parties when the cost
of the exchange is less than the alternate cost incurred in transporting or storing the crude oil. During 2010,
Gulfmark had sales to five customers that comprised 35.8 percent, 20.2 percent, 17.9 percent, 13 percent and 11
percent, respectively, of total Company wide revenues. Management believes that a loss of any of these
customers would not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s operations. See also Note 3 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Adams Resources Marketing, Ltd. (“ARM”), a subsidiary of ARE, operates as a wholesale purchaser,
distributor and marketer of natural gas. ARM’s focus is on the purchase of natural gas at the producer level.
During 2010, ARM purchased approximately 258,000 million british thermal units (“mmbtu’s”) of natural gas per
day at the wellhead and pipeline pooling points. Business is concentrated among approximately 60 independent
producers with the primary production areas being the Louisiana and Texas Gulf Coast and the offshore Gulf of
Mexico region. ARM provides value added services to its customers by providing access to common carrier
pipelines and handling daily volume balancing requirements as well as risk management services.
Ada Resources, Inc. (“Ada”), a subsidiary of ARE, markets branded and unbranded refined petroleum
products such as motor fuels and lubricants. Ada makes purchases based on the supplier’s established distributor
prices, with such prices generally being lower than Ada’s sales price to its customers. Motor fuel sales include
automotive gasoline, biodiesel and conventional diesel fuel. Lubricants consist of passenger car motor oils as
well as a full complement of industrial oils and greases. Ada is also involved in the railroad servicing industry,
including fueling and lubricating locomotives as well as performing routine maintenance on the power units.
Further, the United States Coast Guard has certified Ada as a direct-to-vessel approved marine fuel and lube
vendor. Ada’s marketing area primarily includes the Texas Gulf Coast and southern Louisiana. The primary
product distribution and warehousing facility is located on 5.5 Company-owned acres in Houston, Texas. The
property includes a 60,000 square foot warehouse, 11,000 square feet of office space and bulk storage for 320,000
gallons of lubricating oil.
Operating results are sensitive to a number of factors. Such factors include commodity location, grades of
product, individual customer demand for grades or location of product, localized market price structures,
availability of transportation facilities, actual delivery volumes that vary from expected quantities, and the timing
and costs to deliver the commodity to the customer.
Transportation Segment Subsidiary
Service Transport Company (“STC”), a subsidiary of ARE, transports liquid chemicals on a "for hire"
basis throughout the continental United States and Canada. Transportation service is provided to over 400
customers under multiple load contracts in addition to loads covered under STC’s standard price list. Pursuant to
regulatory requirements, STC holds a Hazardous Materials Certificate of Registration issued by the U.S.
Department of Transportation. Presently, STC operates 283 truck tractors of which 15 are independent owneroperator units and maintains 422 tank trailers. In addition, STC maintains truck terminals in Houston, Corpus
Christi, and Nederland, Texas as well as Baton Rouge (St. Gabriel), Louisiana and Mobile (Saraland), Alabama.
Transportation operations are headquartered at a terminal facility situated on 22 Company-owned acres in
Houston, Texas. This property includes maintenance facilities, an office building, tank wash rack facilities and a
water treatment system. The St. Gabriel, Louisiana terminal is situated on 11.5 Company-owned acres and
includes an office building, maintenance bays and tank cleaning facilities.
STC is compliant with International Organization for Standardization (“ISO”) 9001:2000 Standard. The
scope of this Quality System Certificate covers the carriage of bulk liquids throughout STC’s area of operations as
well as the tank trailer cleaning facilities and equipment maintenance. STC’s quality management process is one
of its major assets. The practice of using statistical process control covering safety, on-time performance and
customer satisfaction aids continuous improvement in all areas of quality service. In addition to its ISO
9001:2000 practices, the American Chemistry Council recognizes STC as a Responsible Care Partner.
Responsible Care Partners serve the chemical industry and implement and monitor the seven Codes of
Management Practices. The seven codes address compliance and continuing improvement in (1) Community
Awareness and Emergency Response, (2) Pollution Prevention, (3) Process Safety, (4) Distribution, (5) Employee
Health and Safety, (6) Product Stewardship and (7) Security.
Oil and Gas Segment Subsidiary
Adams Resources Exploration Corporation (“AREC”), a subsidiary of ARE, is actively engaged in the
exploration and development of domestic oil and natural gas properties primarily in Texas and the south central
region of the United States. AREC’s offices are maintained in Houston and the Company holds an interest in 347
wells of which 41 are Company operated.

3

Producing Wells--The following table sets forth the Company's gross and net productive wells as of
December 31, 2010. Gross wells are the total number of wells in which the Company has an interest, while net
wells are the sum of the fractional interests owned.

Texas
Other

Oil Wells
Gross
Net
69
9.36
94
4.26
163
13.62

Gas Wells
Gross
Net
130
11.56
54
5.40
184
16.96

Total Wells
Gross
Net
199
20.92
148
9.66
347
30.58

Acreage--The following table sets forth the Company's gross and net developed and undeveloped acreage
as of December 31, 2010. Gross acreage represents the Company’s direct ownership and net acreage represents
the sum of the fractional interests owned. The Company’s developed acreage is held by current production while
undeveloped acreage is held by oil and gas leases with various remaining terms from six months to three years.

Texas
Kansas
Other

Undeveloped Acreage
Gross
Net
213,627
16,783
23,213
2,289
5,496
858
242,336
19,930

Developed Acreage
Gross
Net
92,782
10,027
480
80
913
7,499
100,761
11,020

Drilling Activity--The following table sets forth the Company's drilling activity for each of the three years
ended December 31, 2010. All drilling activity was onshore in Texas, Louisiana Arkansas and Kansas.
2010
Exploratory wells drilled
- Productive
- Dry
Development wells drilled
- Productive
- Dry

2009
Gross

2008

Gross

Net

Net

Gross

Net

12

.67

2
7

.10
.94

2
2

.13
.22

41
53

1.77
2.44

24
2
35

1.35
.10
2.49

17
7
28

1.06
.68
2.09

Production and Reserve Information--The Company's estimated net quantities of proved oil and natural
gas reserves and the standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows calculated at a 10% discount rate
for the three years ended December 31, 2010, are presented in the table below (in thousands):

2010
267
7,794

Crude oil (thousands of barrels)
Natural gas (thousands of mcf)
Standardized measure of discounted future
net cash flows from oil and natural gas reserves

$ 16,672

December 31,
2009
242
7,248
$

9,305

2008
230
6,443
$ 11,547

The estimated value of oil and natural gas reserves and future net revenues from oil and natural gas
reserves was made by the Company's independent petroleum engineers. The reserve value estimates provided at
each of December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 are based on market prices of $76.14, $58.43 and $37.87 per barrel
for crude oil and $5.26, $4.05 and $5.65 per mcf for natural gas, respectively. For 2010 and 2009, such prices
were based on the unweighted arithmetic average of the prices in effect on the first day of the month for each
month of the respective twelve month periods as required by Security & Exchange Commission regulations. For
2008, the price reflects the market price on December 31, 2008.
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Reserve estimates are based on many subjective factors. The accuracy of reserve estimates depends on
the quantity and quality of geological data, production performance data, and reservoir engineering data, the
pricing assumptions utilized as well as the skill and judgment of petroleum engineers in interpreting such data.
The process of estimating reserves requires frequent revision of estimates as additional information is made
available through drilling, testing, reservoir studies and acquiring historical pressure and production data. In
addition, the discounted present value of estimated future net revenues should not be construed as the fair market
value of oil and natural gas producing properties. Such estimates do not necessarily portray a realistic assessment
of current value or future performance of such properties. Such revenue calculations are based on estimates as to
the timing of oil and natural gas production, and there is no assurance that the actual timing of production will
conform to or approximate such estimates. Also, certain assumptions have been made with respect to pricing.
The estimates assume prices will remain constant from the date of the engineer's estimates, except for changes
reflected under natural gas sales contracts. There can be no assurance that actual future prices will not vary as
industry conditions, governmental regulation and other factors impact the market price for oil and natural gas.
The Company's oil and natural gas production for the three years ended December 31, 2010 was as
follows:
Years Ended
December 31,
2010
2009
2008

Crude Oil
(barrels)
54,000
49,500
50,500

Natural
Gas (mcf)
1,365,000
1,304,000
1,243,000

Certain financial information relating to the Company's oil and natural gas division revenues and earnings
is summarized as follows:
Years Ended December 31,
2010
2009
2008
Average oil and condensate
sales price per barrel
$ 77.09 $ 58.10
$ 99.25
Average natural gas
sales price per mcf
$ 5.02 $ 4.43
$ 9.84
Average production cost, per equivalent
barrel, charged to expense
$ 13.99 $ 13.25
$ 18.34
The Company has had no reports to federal authorities or agencies of estimated oil and gas reserves. The
Company is not obligated to provide any fixed and determinable quantities of oil or gas in the future under
existing contracts or agreements associated with its oil and gas exploration and production segment.
Environmental Compliance and Regulation
The Company is subject to an extensive variety of evolving United States federal, state and local laws,
rules and regulations governing the storage, transportation, manufacture, use, discharge, release and disposal of
product and contaminants into the environment, or otherwise relating to the protection of the environment.
Presented below is a non-exclusive listing of the environmental laws that potentially impact the Company’s
activities.
− The Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act of 1976,
as amended.
− Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980 ("CERCLA" or
"Superfund"), as amended.
− The Clean Water Act of 1972, as amended.
− Federal Oil Pollution Act of 1990, as amended.
− The Clean Air Act of 1970, as amended.
− The Toxic Substances Control Act of 1976, as amended.
− The Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act.
− The Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970, as amended.

5

−
−
−
−

Texas Clean Air Act.
Texas Solid Waste Disposal Act.
Texas Water Code.
Texas Oil Spill Prevention and Response Act of 1991, as amended.

Railroad Commission of Texas (“RRC”)--The RRC regulates, among other things, the drilling and
operation of oil and natural gas wells, the operation of oil and gas pipelines, the disposal of oil and natural gas
production wastes and certain storage of unrefined oil and gas. RRC regulations govern the generation,
management and disposal of waste from such oil and natural gas operations and provide for the clean up of
contamination from oil and natural gas operations. The RRC has promulgated regulations that provide for civil
and/or criminal penalties and/or injunctive relief for violations of the RRC regulations.
Louisiana Office of Conservation--This agency has primary statutory responsibility for regulation and
conservation of oil, gas, and other natural resources in the State of Louisiana. Their objectives are to (i) regulate
the exploration and production of oil, natural gas and other hydrocarbons; (ii) control and allocate energy supplies
and distribution and (iii) protect public safety and the State’s environment from oilfield waste, including
regulation of underground injection and disposal practices.
State and Local Government Regulation--Many states are authorized by the United States Environmental
Protection Agency (“EPA”) to enforce regulations promulgated under various federal statutes. In addition, there
are numerous other state and local authorities that regulate the environment, some of which impose more stringent
environmental standards than federal laws and regulations. The penalties for violations of state law vary, but
typically include injunctive relief, recovery of damages for injury to air, water or property and fines for noncompliance.
Oil and Gas Operations--The Company's oil and gas drilling and production activities are subject to laws
and regulations relating to environmental quality and pollution control. One aspect of the Company's oil and gas
operation is the disposal of used drilling fluids, saltwater, and crude oil sediments. In addition, low-level
naturally occurring radiation may, at times, occur with the production of crude oil and natural gas. The
Company's policy is to comply with environmental regulations and industry standards. Environmental compliance
has become more stringent and the Company, from time to time, may be required to remediate past practices.
Management believes that such required remediation in the future, if any, will not have a material adverse impact
on the Company's financial position or results of operations.
All states in which the Company owns producing oil and gas properties have statutory provisions
regulating the production and sale of crude oil and natural gas. Regulations typically require permits for the
drilling of wells and regulate the spacing of wells, the prevention of waste, protection of correlative rights, the rate
of production, prevention and clean-up of pollution and other matters.
Marketing Operations--The Company's marketing facilities are subject to a number of state and federal
environmental statutes and regulations, including the regulation of underground fuel storage tanks. While the
Company does not own or operate underground tanks as of December 31, 2010, historically the Company has
been an owner and operator of underground storage tanks. The EPA's Office of Underground Tanks and
applicable state laws establish regulations requiring owners or operators of underground fuel tanks to demonstrate
evidence of financial responsibility for the costs of corrective action and the compensation of third parties for
bodily injury and property damage caused by sudden and non-sudden accidental releases arising from operating
underground tanks. In addition, the EPA requires the installation of leak detection devices and stringent
monitoring of the ongoing condition of underground tanks. Should leakage develop in an underground tank, the
operator is obligated for clean up costs. During the period when the Company was an operator of underground
tanks, it secured insurance covering both third party liability and clean up costs.
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Transportation Operations--The Company's tank truck operations are conducted pursuant to authority of
the United States Department of Transportation (“DOT”) and various state regulatory authorities. The Company's
transportation operations must also be conducted in accordance with various laws relating to pollution and
environmental control. Interstate motor carrier operations are subject to safety requirements prescribed by DOT.
Matters such as weight and dimension of equipment are also subject to federal and state regulations. DOT
regulations also require mandatory drug testing of drivers and require certain tests for alcohol levels in drivers and
other safety personnel. The trucking industry is subject to possible regulatory and legislative changes such as
increasingly stringent environmental regulations or limits on vehicle weight and size. Regulatory change may
affect the economics of the industry by requiring changes in operating practices or by changing the demand for
common or contract carrier services or the cost of providing truckload services. In addition, the Company’s tank
wash facilities are subject to increasingly stringent local, state and federal environmental regulations.
The Company has implemented security procedures for drivers and terminal facilities. Satellite tracking
transponders installed in the power units are used to communicate en route emergencies to the Company and to
maintain constant information as to the unit’s location. If necessary, the Company’s terminal personnel will
notify local law enforcement agencies. In addition, the Company is able to advise a customer of the status and
location of their loads. Remote cameras and better lighting coverage in the staging and parking areas have
augmented terminal security.
Regulatory Status and Potential Environmental Liability--The operations and facilities of the Company
are subject to numerous federal, state and local environmental laws and regulations including those described
above, as well as associated permitting and licensing requirements. The Company regards compliance with
applicable environmental regulations as a critical component of its overall operation, and devotes significant
attention to providing quality service and products to its customers, protecting the health and safety of its
employees, and protecting the Company’s facilities from damage. Management believes the Company has
obtained or applied for all permits and approvals required under existing environmental laws and regulations to
operate its current business. Management has reported that the Company is not subject to any pending or
threatened environmental litigation or enforcement action(s), which could materially and adversely affect the
Company's business. The Company has, where appropriate, implemented operating procedures at each of its
facilities designed to assure compliance with environmental laws and regulation. However, given the nature of the
Company’s business, the Company is subject to environmental risks and the possibility remains that the
Company's ownership of its facilities and its operations and activities could result in civil or criminal enforcement
and public as well as private action(s) against the Company, which may necessitate or generate mandatory clean
up activities, revocation of required permits or licenses, denial of application for future permits, and/or significant
fines, penalties or damages, any and all of which could have a material adverse effect on the Company. At
December 31, 2010, the Company is unaware of any unresolved environmental issues for which additional
accounting accruals are necessary.
Employees
At December 31, 2010 the Company employed 740 persons, 15 of whom were employed in the
exploration and production of oil and gas, 299 in the marketing of crude oil, natural gas and petroleum products,
405 in transportation operations, and 21 in administrative capacities. None of the Company's employees are
represented by a union. Management believes its employee relations are satisfactory.
Federal and State Taxation
The Company is subject to the provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the
“Code”). In accordance with the Code, the Company computes its income tax provision based on a 35 percent tax
rate. The Company's operations are, in large part, conducted within the State of Texas. Texas operations are
subject to a one-half percent state tax on its revenues net of cost of goods sold as defined by the state. Oil and gas
activities are also subject to state and local income, severance, property and other taxes. Management believes the
Company is currently in compliance with all federal and state tax regulations.

7

Available Information
The Company is required to file periodic reports as well as other information with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (“SEC”) within established deadlines. Any document filed with the SEC may be viewed
or copied at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. Additional
information regarding the Public Reference Room can be obtained by calling the SEC at
(800) SEC-0330. The Company’s SEC filings are also available to the public through the SEC’s web site located
at http://www.sec.gov.
The Company maintains a corporate website at http://www.adamsresources.com, on which investors may
access free of charge the annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on
Form 8-K and amendments to those reports as soon as is reasonably practicable after filing or furnishing such
material with the SEC. Additionally, the Company has adopted and posted on its website a Code of Business
Ethics designed to reflect requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, NYSE Amex Exchange rules and
other applicable laws, rules and regulations. The Code of Business Ethics applies to all of the Company’s
directors, officers and employees. Any amendment to the Code of Business Ethics will be posted promptly on the
Company’s website. The information contained on or accessible from the Company’s website does not constitute
a part of this report and is not incorporated by reference herein. The Company will provide a printed copy of any
of these aforementioned documents free of charge upon request by calling ARE at (713)-881-3600 or by writing
to:
Adams Resources & Energy, Inc.
ATTN: Richard B. Abshire
4400 Post Oak Parkway, Suite 2700
Houston, Texas 77027
Item 1A. RISK FACTORS
Economic developments could damage operations and materially reduce profitability and cash flows.
Initially in 2008, disruptions in the credit markets and concerns about global economic growth had a
significant adverse impact on global financial markets and commodity prices. At times, these factors contributed
to a decline in the Company’s stock price and corresponding market capitalization. During 2010, general
economic conditions improved and the Company experienced a more normal operating environment with
improved commodity prices. Should commodity prices return to a period of rapid decline, future earnings will be
reduced. Since the Company has no bank debt obligations nor covenants tied to its stock price, potential declines
in the Company’s stock price do not affect the Company’s liquidity or overall financial condition. Should the
capital and credit markets experience volatility and the availability of funds remains limited, the Company’s
customers and suppliers may incur increased costs associated with issuing commercial paper and/or other debt
instruments and this, in turn, could adversely affect the Company’s ability to secure supply and make profitable
sales.
General economic conditions could reduce demand for chemical based trucking services.
Customer demand for the Company’s products and services is substantially dependent upon the general
economic conditions for the United States which has been slow in years past. In particular, demand for liquid
chemical truck transportation services is dependent on activity within the petrochemical sector of the U. S.
economy. Chemical sector demand typically varies with the housing and auto markets as well as the relative
strength of the U. S. dollar to foreign currencies. A relatively strong U.S. dollar exchange rate tends to suppress
export demand for petrochemicals which is adverse to the Company’s transportation operation. Conversely, a
weak U. S. dollar exchange rate tends to stimulate export demand for petrochemicals.
The Company’s business is dependent on the ability to obtain trade and other credit.
The Company’s future development and growth depends in part on its ability to successfully obtain credit
from suppliers and other parties. Trade credit arrangements are relied upon as a significant source of liquidity for
capital requirements not satisfied by operating cash flow.
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Should global financial markets and economic conditions disrupt and reduce the stability of financial
markets in general and the solvency of creditors specifically, the availability of funding from credit markets
would be reduced as many lenders and institutional investors would enact tighter lending standards, refuse to
refinance existing debt on terms similar to current debt or in some cases, cease to provide funding to borrowers.
These issues coupled with weak economic conditions would make it more difficult for the Company and its
suppliers and customers to obtain funding.
If the Company is unable to obtain trade or other forms of credit on reasonable and competitive terms, its
ability to continue its marketing and exploration businesses, pursue improvements, and continue future growth
will be limited. There is no assurance that the Company will be able to maintain future credit arrangements on
commercially reasonable terms.
The financial soundness of customers could affect the Company’s business and operating results
Constraints in the financial markets and other macro-economic challenges that might affect the economy
of the United States and other parts of the world could cause the Company’s customers to experience cash flow
concerns. As a result, if customers’ operating and financial performance deteriorates, or if they are unable to
make scheduled payments or obtain credit, customers would not be able to pay, or may delay payment of,
accounts receivable owed to the Company. Any inability of current and/or potential customers to pay for services
may adversely affect the Company’s financial condition and results of operations.
Counterparty credit default could have an adverse effect on the Company.
The Company’s revenues are generated under contracts with various counterparties. Results of operations
would be adversely affected as a result of non-performance by any of these counterparties of their contractual
obligations under the various contracts. A counterparty’s default or non-performance could be caused by factors
beyond the Company’s control. A default could occur as a result of circumstances relating directly to the
counterparty, or due to circumstances caused by other market participants having a direct or indirect relationship
with such counterparty. The Company seeks to mitigate the risk of default by evaluating the financial strength of
potential counterparties; however, despite mitigation efforts, defaults by counterparties may occur from time to
time.
Escalating diesel fuel prices could have an adverse effect on the Company
As an integral part of the Company’s marketing and transportation businesses, the Company operates a
fleet of over 400 truck-tractors and diesel fuel costs are a significant component of operating expense. Such costs
generally fluctuate with increasing and decreasing world crude oil prices. While the Company attempts to recoup
rising diesel fuel costs through the pricing of its services, to the extent such costs escalate, operating earnings will
generally be adversely affected.
Fluctuations in oil and gas prices could have an effect on the Company.
The Company’s future financial condition, revenues, results of operations and future rate of growth are
materially affected by oil and natural gas prices. Oil and natural gas prices historically have been volatile and are
likely to continue to be volatile in the future. Moreover, oil and natural gas prices depend on factors outside the
control of the Company. These factors include:
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•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

supply and demand for oil and gas and expectations regarding supply and demand;
political conditions in other oil-producing countries, including the possibility of insurgency or war in
such areas;
economic conditions in the United States and worldwide;
governmental regulations and taxation;
impact of energy conservation efforts;
the price and availability of alternative fuel sources;
weather conditions;
availability of local, interstate and intrastate transportation systems; and
market uncertainty.

Revenues are generated under contracts that must be renegotiated periodically.
Substantially all of the Company’s revenues are generated under contracts which expire periodically or
which must be frequently renegotiated, extended or replaced. Whether these contracts are renegotiated, extended
or replaced is often subject to factors beyond the Company’s control. Such factors include sudden fluctuations in
oil and gas prices, counterparty ability to pay for or accept the contracted volumes and, most importantly, an
extremely competitive marketplace for the services offered by the Company. There is no assurance that the costs
and pricing of the Company’s services can remain competitive in the marketplace or that the Company will be
successful in renegotiating its contracts.
Anticipated or scheduled volumes will differ from actual or delivered volumes.
The Company’s crude oil and natural gas marketing operation purchases initial production of crude oil
and natural gas at the wellhead under contracts requiring the Company to accept the actual volume produced. The
resale of such production is generally under contracts requiring a fixed volume to be delivered. The Company
estimates its anticipated supply and matches such supply estimate for both volume and pricing formulas with
committed sales volumes. Since actual wellhead volumes produced will never equal anticipated supply, the
Company’s marketing margins may be adversely impacted. In many instances, any losses resulting from the
difference between actual supply volumes compared to committed sales volumes must be absorbed by the
Company.
Environmental liabilities and environmental regulations may have an adverse effect on the Company.
The Company’s business is subject to environmental hazards such as spills, leaks or any discharges of
petroleum products and hazardous substances. These environmental hazards could expose the Company to
material liabilities for property damage, personal injuries and/or environmental harms, including the costs of
investigating and rectifying contaminated properties.
Environmental laws and regulations govern many aspects of the Company’s business, such as drilling and
exploration, production, transportation and waste management. Compliance with environmental laws and
regulations can require significant costs or may require a decrease in production. Moreover, noncompliance with
these laws and regulations could subject the Company to significant administrative, civil and/or criminal fines
and/or penalties.
Operations could result in liabilities that may not be fully covered by insurance.
Transportation of hazardous materials and the oil and gas business involves certain operating hazards
such as well blowouts, automobile accidents, explosions, fires and pollution. Any of these operating hazards
could cause serious injuries, fatalities or property damage, which could expose the Company to liability. The
payment of any of these liabilities could reduce, or even eliminate, the funds available for exploration,
development, and acquisition, or could result in a loss of the Company’s properties and may even threaten
survival of the enterprise.
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Consistent with the industry standard, the Company’s insurance policies provide limited coverage for
losses or liabilities relating to pollution, with broader coverage for sudden and accidental occurrences. Insurance
might be inadequate to cover all liabilities. Moreover, from time to time, obtaining insurance for the Company’s
line of business can become difficult and costly. Typically, when insurance cost escalates, the Company may
reduce its level of coverage and more risk may be retained to offset cost increases. If substantial liability is
incurred and damages are not covered by insurance or exceed policy limits, the Company’s operation and
financial condition could be materially adversely affected.
Changes in tax laws or regulations could adversely affect the Company.
The Internal Revenue Service, the United States Treasury Department and Congress and the states
frequently review federal or state income tax legislation. The Company cannot predict whether, when or to what
extent new federal or state tax laws, regulations, interpretations or rulings will be adopted. Any such legislative
action may prospectively or retroactively modify tax treatment and, therefore, may adversely affect taxation of the
Company. On February 14, 2011, the Office of Management and Budget released a summary of the proposed
U.S. federal budget for fiscal year 2012. The proposed budget repeals certain tax incentives including the ability
to fully deduct intangible drilling costs in the year incurred. Should such provisions become law, the Company’s
tax payments would increase with a potentially negative impact on cash flows and drilling activities.
The Company’s business is subject to changing government regulations.
Federal, state or local government agencies may impose environmental, labor or other regulations that
increase costs and/or terminate or suspend operations. The Company’s business is subject to federal, state and
local laws and regulations. These regulations relate to, among other things, the exploration, development,
production and transportation of oil and natural gas. Existing laws and regulations could be changed, and any
changes could increase costs of compliance and costs of operations.
Several proposals are before the U.S. Congress that, if implemented, would either prohibit the practice of
hydraulic fracturing or subject the process to regulation under the Safe Drinking Water Act. The Company
routinely participates in wells where fracturing techniques are utilized to expand the available space for natural
gas and oil to migrate toward the well-bore. It is typically done at substantial depths in very tight formations.
Although it is not possible at this time to predict the final outcome of the legislation regarding hydraulic
fracturing, any new federal restrictions could result in increased compliance costs or additional operating
restrictions.
Estimating reserves, production and future net cash flow is difficult.
Estimating oil and natural gas reserves is a complex process that involves significant interpretations and
assumptions. It requires interpretation of technical data and assumptions relating to economic factors such as
future commodity prices, production costs, severance and excise taxes, capital expenditures and remedial costs,
and the assumed effect of governmental regulation. As a result, actual results may differ from the Company’s
estimates. Also, the use of a 10 percent discount factor for reporting purposes, as prescribed by the SEC, may not
necessarily represent the most appropriate discount factor, given actual interest rates and risks to which the
Company’s business is subject. Any significant variations from the Company’s valuations could cause the
estimated quantities and net present value of the Company’s reserves to differ materially.
The reserve data included in this report is only an estimate. The reader should not assume that the present
values referred to in this report represent the current market value of the Company’s estimated oil and natural gas
reserves. The timing of the production and the expenses from development and production of oil and natural gas
properties will affect both the timing of actual future net cash flows from the Company’s proved reserves and
their present value.
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The Company’s business is dependent on the ability to replace reserves.
Future success depends in part on the Company’s ability to find, develop and acquire additional oil and
natural gas reserves. Without successful acquisition or exploration activities, reserves and revenues will decline
as a result of current reserves being depleted by production. The successful acquisition, development or
exploration of oil and natural gas properties requires an assessment of recoverable reserves, future oil and natural
gas prices and operating costs, potential environmental and other liabilities, and other factors. These assessments
are necessarily inexact. As a result, the Company may not recover the purchase price of a property from the sale
of production from the property, or may not recognize an acceptable return from properties acquired. In addition,
exploration and development operations may not result in any increases in reserves. Exploration or development
may be delayed or cancelled as a result of inadequate capital, compliance with governmental regulations or price
controls or mechanical difficulties. In the future, the cost to find or acquire additional reserves may become
prohibitive.
Revenues are dependent on the ability to successfully complete drilling activity.
Drilling and exploration are one of the main methods of replacing reserves. However, drilling and
exploration operations may not result in any increases in reserves for various reasons. Drilling and exploration
may be curtailed, delayed or cancelled as a result of:
•
•
•
•
•
•

lack of acceptable prospective acreage;
inadequate capital resources;
weather;
title problems;
compliance with governmental regulations; and
mechanical difficulties.

Moreover, the costs of drilling and exploration may greatly exceed initial estimates. In such a case, the
Company would be required to make additional expenditures to develop its drilling projects. Such additional and
unanticipated expenditures could adversely affect the Company’s financial condition and results of operations.
Security issues exist relating to drivers, equipment and terminal facilities
The Company transports liquid combustible materials such as gasoline and petrochemicals and such
materials may be a target for terrorist attacks. While the Company employs a variety of security measures to
mitigate the risk of such events no assurance can be given that such events will not occur.
Current and future litigation could have an adverse effect on the Company.
The Company is currently involved in several administrative and civil legal proceedings in the ordinary
course of its business. Moreover, as incidental to operations, the Company sometimes becomes involved in
various lawsuits and/or disputes. Lawsuits and other legal proceedings can involve substantial costs, including
the costs associated with investigation, litigation and possible settlement, judgment, penalty or fine. Although
insurance is maintained to mitigate these costs, there can be no assurance that costs associated with lawsuits or
other legal proceedings will not exceed the limits of insurance policies. The Company’s results of operations
could be adversely affected if a judgment, penalty or fine is not fully covered by insurance.
Item 1B UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.
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Item 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
From time to time as incident to its operations, the Company may become involved in various lawsuits
and/or disputes. Primarily as an operator of an extensive trucking fleet, the Company is a party to motor vehicle
accidents, worker compensation claims and other items of general liability as would be typical for the industry.
Management of the Company is presently unaware of any claims against the Company that are either outside the
scope of insurance coverage, or that may exceed the level of insurance coverage, and could potentially represent a
material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position or results of operations.
Item 4. RESERVED
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PART II
Item 5.

MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT'S COMMON STOCK, RELATED SECURITY HOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER REPURCHASE OF EQUITY SECURITIES

The Company's common stock is traded on the NYSE Amex, formerly known as the American Stock
Exchange, under the ticker symbol “AE”. The following table sets forth the high and low sales prices of the
common stock as reported by the NYSE Amex for each calendar quarter since January 1, 2009.
American Stock Exchange
High
Low
2009
First Quarter
Second Quarter
Third Quarter
Fourth Quarter

$ 18.40
18.49
21.95
25.18

$ 12.66
12.75
14.83
19.18

2010
First Quarter
Second Quarter
Third Quarter
Fourth Quarter

$ 23.39
19.95
21.49
24.95

$ 17.40
15.25
16.00
17.86

At March 10, 2011 there were approximately 253 shareholders of record of the Company's common stock
and the closing stock price was $25.97 per share. The Company has no securities authorized for issuance under
equity compensation plans. The Company made no repurchases of its stock during 2010 and 2009.
On December 15, 2010, the Company paid an annual cash dividend of $.54 per common share to common
stockholders of record on December 1, 2010. On December 15, 2009, the Company paid an annual cash dividend
of $.50 per common share to common stockholders of record on December 1, 2009. Such dividends totaled
$2,277,540 and $2,108,798 for each of 2010 and 2009, respectively.
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Performance Graph
The performance graph shown below was prepared under the applicable rules of the SEC based on data
supplied by Research Data Group. The purpose of the graph is to show comparative total stockholder returns for
the Company versus other investment options for a specified period of time. The graph was prepared based upon
the following assumptions:
1. $100.00 was invested on December 31, 2005 in the Company’s common stock, the S&P 500 Index,
and the S&P 500 Integrated Oil and Gas Index.
2. Dividends are reinvested on the ex-dividend dates.
Note: The stock price performance shown on the graph below is not necessarily indicative of future price
performance.
Comparison of Five Year Cumulative Total Return
Among Adams Resources & Energy, Inc., S&P 500 Index + S&P 500 Integrated Oil & Gas Index

Adams Resources & Energy, Inc.
S&P 500
S&P Integrated Oil & Gas
$300

Dollars

$200

$100

$0
Dec05

Dec06

Dec07

Dec08

Dec09

Dec10

Calendar Year Ended

Total Return To Shareholders
(Includes reinvestment of dividends)

Company / Index
Adams Resources & Energy, Inc.
S&P 500 Index
S&P 500 Integrated Oil & Gas Index

Base
Period
Dec05
100
100
100

INDEXED RETURNS
Years Ending
Dec06
133.65
115.80
134.83
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Dec07
116.48
122.16
175.08

Dec08
79.61
76.96
136.93

Dec09
105.65
97.33
135.17

Dec10
119.21
111.99
160.64

Item 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
FIVE YEAR REVIEW OF SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
Years Ended December 31,
2009
2008
2007
(In thousands, except per share data)

2010
Revenues:
Marketing
Transportation
Oil and natural gas
Operating Earnings:
Marketing
Transportation
Oil and gas operations
Oil and gas property sale
General and administrative

$ 2,144,082
56,867
11,021
$ 2,211,970

$ 1,889,583
44,895
8,650
$ 1,943,128

$ 4,074,677
67,747
17,248
$ 4,159,672

$ 2,558,545
63,894
13,783
$ 2,636,222

$

$

$

$

16,724
6,623
(1,757)
(9,044)
12,546

17,487
2,128
(3,625)
(9,589)
6,401

(2,704)
4,245
(3,348)
(9,667)
(11,474)

2006

$ 2,167,502
62,151
16,950
$ 2,246,603

20,152 $
5,504
(2,853)
12,078
(10,974)
23,907

12,975
5,173
5,355
(8,536)
14,967

Other income (expense):
Interest income
Interest expense
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations
before income taxes

12,701

6,501

(10,558)

25,514

15,773

Income tax (provision) benefit

(4,070)

(2,352)

4,986

(8,458)

(5,290)

Net earnings (loss)

191
(36)

125
(25)

1,103
(187)

1,741
(134)

965
(159)

$

8,631

$

4,149

$

(5,572)

$

17,056

$

10,483

Earnings (Loss) Per Share
Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share $

2.05

$

.98

$

(1.32)

$

4.04

$

2.49

$

.54

$

.50

$

.50

$

.47

$

.42

Working capital
$
Total assets
Long-term debt, net of
current maturities
Shareholders’ equity
Dividends on common shares
________________________________

39,978
301,305

$

38,372
249,401

$

41,559
210,926

$

50,572
357,075

$

35,208
289,287

Dividends per common share
Financial Position

90,155
2,277

83,801
2,109

81,761
2,109

89,442
1,982

3,000
74,368
1,771

Notes:
- In 2007, certain oil and natural gas producing properties were sold for $14.9 million producing a net gain
of $12.1 million.

16

Item 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Results of Operations
- Marketing
Marketing revenues, operating earnings and depreciation are as follows (in thousands):
2010
Revenues
Crude oil
Natural gas
Refined products
Total
Operating Earnings (loss)
Crude oil
Natural gas
Refined products
Total
Depreciation
Crude oil
Natural gas
Refined products
Total

$

$

$

$

2009

2,005,301
10,592
128,189
2,144,082

13,530
3,073
121
16,724

$

2,320
44
503
2,867

$

$

1,770,600
14,232
104,751
1,889,583

$

$

15,404
2,749
(666)
17,487

$

$

1,997
166
533
2,696

$

2008
$

$

3,849,531
11,586
213,560
4,074,677

$

(4,545)
2,247
(406)
(2,704)

$

$

2,039
163
565
2,767

$

Supplemental volume and price information is:
2009

2010
Field Level Purchases per day (1)
Crude Oil – barrels
Natural Gas – mmbtu’s
Average Purchase Price
Crude Oil – per barrel
Natural Gas – per mmbtu
(1)

69,000
258,000

$
$

77.20
4.28

2008

66,100
363,000

$
$

58.32
3.75

67,800
437,000

$
$

99.72
8.63

Reflects the volume purchased from third parties at the oil and natural gas field level and pipeline pooling points.

Comparison 2010 to 2009
Crude oil revenues were elevated by 13 percent in 2010 due to both volume and price increases. Average
crude oil prices increased by 33 percent and crude oil lease level volumes improved by 4 percent as shown in the
table above. Total revenue grew by less than the amount indicated by pricing because certain buy/sell
arrangements are reported on a net revenue basis and as a result, a change in the Company’s customer mix will
increase or decrease comparative reported revenues. During 2010 a larger portion of sales were reported on a net
revenue basis, partially offsetting the effect of increased average prices and volumes.

17

Increased crude oil prices boosted operating earnings during 2010. The average acquisition price of crude
oil moved from $75 per barrel at the beginning of the year to $88 per barrel for December 2010 resulting in
inventory liquidation gains totaling $2,272,000. Similarly, during 2009, crude oil prices rose from the $41 per
barrel range in January to the $75 per barrel range by December 2009 producing a $5,780,000 inventory
liquidation gain. As of December 31, 2010, the Company held 146,269 barrels of crude oil inventory at an
average price of $88.26 per barrel.
Diesel fuel expense which tends to fluctuate in tandem with crude oil prices also has a significant impact
on operating earnings. A relatively low level of diesel fuel costs during 2009, served to improve comparative
operating earnings for such year. The impact on crude oil operating earnings from inventory liquidation gains and
diesel fuel cost is summarized as follows (in thousands):

As reported operating earnings
Inventory liquidation (gains)

Diesel fuel expense

2010
$ 13,530
(2,272)

2009
$ 15,404
(5,780)

$

2008
(4,545)
11,883

$ 11,258

$

9,624

$

7,338

$

$

4,612

$

7,271

6,001

During 2010, the Company has generally experienced an increase in per unit margins as the increasing
cost to procure supply has lagged end market pricing. This pricing scenario has been driven, in large part, by
recent new production trends in the Eagle Ford shale formation of South Texas. This trend looks to continue as
the Eagle Ford formation is currently an active area for drilling for several of the Company’s suppliers.
Natural gas sales are reported net of underlying natural gas purchase costs and thus reflect gross margin.
As shown above, gross margins were reduced during 2010 as average field level purchase volumes were off
29 percent for the period (see table above). Current volume declines resulted from the Company’s suppliers
curtailing drilling activity due to lower natural gas prices. In addition, development of the United States’ natural
gas infrastructure including more diverse areas of production and expanded pipeline and storage capacity have
served to reduce purchase opportunities and per unit margins. In contrast to the gross margin trend, the
Company’s natural gas marketing personnel were able to adjust marketplace strategy and capture additional
margin opportunities which bolstered operating earnings for the current year.
Operating earnings for the refined products segment improved in 2010 as the United States economy
stabilized. Both 2009 and 2008 suffered from the downturn in the domestic economy which began during the
third quarter of 2008. Due to customer financial stability concerns, refined product operating earnings were
additionally impacted in 2009 and 2008 when the bad debt provision was increased by approximately $560,000
and $700,000, respectively. The Company focused on cost controls and instituted personnel cut-backs in the
fourth quarter of 2009 to restore profitability to this segment.
Comparison 2009 to 2008
Crude oil revenues declined for 2009 by 54 percent relative to 2008 because of significantly lower
average crude oil prices as shown in the table above. While comparative overall crude oil prices were reduced in
2009, the direction of change in price was generally increasing during the period leading to the operating gains as
discussed above.
As shown on the comparative table above, natural gas gross margins spiked in 2009 at $14,232,000. This
result occurred because in 2009 the Company elected to ship more of its gas supply on the interstate and intrastate
pipeline systems. This strategy boosted unit gross margins but also increased pipeline transportation expense, a
deduction for operating margins.
Historically, prices received for crude oil and natural gas as well as derivative products have been volatile
and unpredictable with price volatility expected to continue. See also discussion under Item 1A Risk Factors.
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-

Transportation

The transportation segment revenues and operating earnings were as follows (in thousands):
2010
Amount Change(1)
Revenues

$ 56,867

Operating earnings $
Depreciation
______________
(1)

$

Amount

2009
Change(1)

2008
Amount
Change(1)

27%

$44,895

(34)%

$ 67,747

6%

6,623

211%

$ 2,128

(50)%

$ 4,245

(23)%

4,288

8%

$ 3,970

3%

$ 3,843

(10)%

Represents the percentage increase (decrease) from the prior year.

Comparison 2010 to 2009
Revenues and operating results improved for the transportation segment in 2010 due to increased
customer demand. The Company’s customers predominately consist of the domestic petrochemical industry and
demand for such products has substantially recovered from the slow down occurring in 2009. Serving to improve
customer demand was a recovering United States economy, relatively low natural gas prices and improved export
demand for petrochemicals. In addition, during the recent economic downturn, the trucking industry reduced
capacity by retiring older units without replacement. Following recent demand improvement, industry capacity
has been strained allowing rate increases and improved overall profitability. As transportation revenues increase
or decrease, operating earnings will typically increase or decrease at an accelerated rate. This trend results
because the fixed cost components of the Company’s operation do not vary with changing revenues. As currently
configured, operating earnings project at break-even levels when annual revenues average approximately $47
million. Above that level, operating earnings will grow and below that level losses result.
Transportation segment depreciation increased in 2010 as older fully depreciated tractor units were
replaced with new model year vehicles. The purchase of 200 current model year tractor and trailer units at an
estimated cost of approximately $20 million is planned for 2011 through midway 2012.
Comparison 2009 to 2008
Revenues and operating results turned downward for the transportation segment in 2009 due to reduced
customer demand beginning in the third quarter of 2008. The national economic recession occurring at the time
severely and adversely impacted this segment of the Company’s business. Typically, as revenues decline,
operating earnings decline at a faster rate, as measured by percentage, due to the fixed cost components of
operating costs. In March 2009, the Company instituted cost cutting measures including a reduction in personnel
levels in order to better align costs with a lower level of revenues. As a result, the rate of decline in operating
earnings slowed relative to the rate of decline in revenues beginning in the second quarter of 2009 and these cost
cutting measures contributed to a stronger than normal level of improvement in 2010 when customer demand
resumed.
-

Oil and Gas

Oil and gas segment revenues and operating earnings are primarily derived from crude oil and natural gas
production volumes and prices. Comparative amounts for revenues, operating earnings and depreciation and
depletion were as follows (in thousands):
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Revenues
Operating earnings (loss)
Depreciation and depletion
Producing property impairments
______________
(1)

2010
Amount Change(1)

2009
Amount Change(1)

2008
Amount Change(1)

$ 11,021

$ 8,650

$ 17,248

25%

27%

(50)%

(1,757)

51%

(3,625)

8%

(3,348)

17%

4,662

28%

3,654

(46)%

6,763

16%

(30)%

1,350

(56)%

3,078

153%

946

Represents the percentage increase (decrease) from the prior year.

The revenue and earnings improvement for the oil and gas segment is attributable to crude oil and natural
gas volume and price increases as shown in the table below. Volumes improved with the results of recent drilling
efforts. Operating earnings in 2010 also benefited from reduced exploration and impairment expenses as shown
in the second table below. As shown above, depreciation and depletion expense was reduced in 2009 because a
significant decline in hydrocarbon prices at year-end December 31, 2008 caused significant producing property
impairment provisions to be recorded during 2008 and such charges reduced the level of capitalized costs for
amortizing in 2009.
Comparative volumes and prices were as follows:
2010

2009

Production Volumes
- Crude Oil
- Natural Gas

54,000
1,365,000

Average Price
- Crude Oil
- Natural Gas

$
$

2008

bbls
49,500
mcf 1,304,000

77.09 bbls $
5.02 mcf $

58.10
4.43

bbls
mcf

50,500
1,243,000

bbls
mcf

bbls
mcf

$ 99.25
$ 9.84

bbls
mcf

Comparative exploration and impairment costs were as follows (in thousands):

Dry hole expense
Prospect impairment
Seismic and geological
Total

$

2010
1,894
1,277
62

$

3,233

$

2009
661
2,423
734

$

3,818

2008
$
2,421
2,834
775
$

6,030

During 2010, the Company participated in the drilling of 53 wells with 41 successful and 12 dry holes.
Additionally, the Company had twenty-one wells in process on December 31, 2010 with ultimate evaluation
anticipated during 2011. Converting natural gas volumes to equate with crude oil volumes at a ratio of six to
one, oil and gas production volumes and proved reserve changes summarized as follows on an equivalent barrel
(Eq. Bbls) basis:
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2010
(Eq. Bbls.)

2009
(Eq. Bbls.)

2008
(Eq. Bbls.)

Proved reserves – beginning of year
Estimated reserve additions
Production volumes
Revisions of previous estimates

1,450,000
536,000
(282,000)
(138,000)

1,304,000
439,000
(267,000)
(26,000)

1,475,000
395,000
(258,000)
(308,000)

Proved reserves - end of year

1,566,000

1,450,000

1,304,000

During 2010 and in total for the three year period ended December 31, 2010, estimated reserve additions
represented 190 percent and 172 percent, respectively, of production volumes.

The Company’s current drilling and exploration efforts are primarily focused as follows:
East Texas Project
Beginning in 2005, the Company began acquiring acreage interests in Nacogdoches and Shelby
counties of East Texas. Subsequent drilling activity produced 26 productive wells through the
end of 2009. Drilling activity in the area’s Haynesville shale formation increased dramatically in
2010, primarily to maintain the Company’s leasehold position for future development drilling as
natural gas prices improve. Twenty-two successful wells were drilled with no dry holes during
2010, bringing the total number of Haynesville shale wells to thirty-four including wells in
progress at year end. Last year the Company, with its partner, acquired an additional 19,000
acres in Angelina County due south of the Company’s original acreage position. Acreage
maintained by production now totals approximately 37,000 gross acres with approximately
54,000 gross acres remaining to be drilled. The Company’s working interest in this project varies
from two percent to five percent and the Company’s acreage position net to its interest is
approximately 3,200 acres. Thirty-four additional wells are planned in this area in 2011.
Austin County Project
In 2008, the Company elected to participate in the exploitation of an existing 3-D seismic survey
over the Raccoon Bend Dome located in Austin County, Texas. The oil prospect was to test
deeper zones that had not been adequately evaluated by earlier drilling. Seven wells were drilled
in 2010 bringing the total number of wells drilled in the prospect to eleven with eight of the
eleven successfully completed as oil wells. Drilling on this project will continue in 2011 with
three or four wells planned back to back during the second quarter. The operator of the property
has identified additional locations that may also be drilled in 2011. The Company has an 8%
working interest in this prospect.
South Central Kansas Project
The Company is participating with a 10 percent working interest in a large 3-D seismic survey in
South Central Kansas and has a working interest in 23,693 gross acres. A number of prospects
have been identified and four wells were drilled in 2010. Two of these wells were completed
with marginal success and a third well is currently testing after frac. The fourth well was not
successful. The seismic is being reevaluated and additional drilling is planned for 2011.
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West Texas Project
Beginning in 2008, the Company participated in the acquisition and development of
approximately 48,000 acres in the Wolfcamp formation of Irion County, Texas. Initial results did
not meet expectations and a second third party operator was brought into the project. Twelve
Wolfcamp shale wells have now been drilled with seven such wells being horizontal
developments. Recent results are positive with initial flow rates over 500 barrels of oil per day.
Twenty four wells are planned for drilling on this acreage in 2011 and the Company has an
approximate two percent working interest in this project.
Subsequent Property Sale
In January 2011, the Company completed the sale of its interest in certain producing oil and gas
properties located in the on-shore Gulf Coast region of Texas. Proceeds from the sale totaled $6.2 million and the
Company will report a pre-tax gain of approximately $2.7 million from this transaction during the first quarter of
2011. Total proved reserves sold were approximately 26,000 barrels of crude oil and 2,148,000 mcf of natural
gas. Sales negotiations were conducted by the third party operator of the properties on behalf of all working
interest owners and the transaction was completed with a separate third party investment entity. The Company’s
proportionate interest in the transaction was approximately 5 percent and the Company elected to participate in
the sale due to attractive pricing. Proceeds from the sale will be used for general working capital purposes.
-

General and administrative, interest income and income tax

General and administrative expenses were consistent during the five year review period ending December
31, 2010 except during 2007 such costs were elevated due to federally mandated Sarbanes-Oxley compliance
costs. Interest income declined for 2010 and 2009 as interest rates on overnight deposits declined to near zero
following the significant turmoil that occurred in the financial markets during the fall of 2008. The provision for
income taxes is based on Federal and State tax rates and variations are consistent with taxable income in the
respective accounting periods.
-

Outlook

The marketing and transportation segments have been performing at expected levels and business
currently looks to be holding firm. Increased crude oil production in the Company’s South Texas marketing area
is also occurring as the Eagle Ford shale play is being developed by third party operators in the region. In
contrast to the recent strength in the crude oil markets, natural gas prices have been in decline, falling at times to
below $4 per mcf. Despite low natural gas prices, the Company’s recent drilling success has improved oil and gas
segment earnings and management believes this earnings trend will continue.
The Company has the following major objectives for 2011:
-

Maintain marketing operating earnings at the $15 million level exclusive of inventory valuation
gains or losses.

-

Maintain transportation operating earnings at the $6 million level.

-

Establish oil and gas operating earnings at the $5 million level and replace 2011 production with
current reserve additions.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources
The Company’s liquidity primarily derives from net cash provided from operating activities, which was
$36,928,000, $22,285,000 and $13,639,000 for each of 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively. As of December 31,
2010 and 2009, the Company had no bank debt or other forms of debenture obligations. Cash and cash
equivalents totaled $29,032,000 as of December 31, 2010, and such balances are maintained in order to meet the
timing of day-to-day cash needs. Working capital, the excess of current assets over current liabilities, totaled
$39,978,000 as of December 31, 2010.
Capital expenditures during 2010 included $10,722,000 for marketing and transportation equipment
additions, primarily consisting of trucks-tractors, and $11,699,000 in property additions associated with oil and
gas exploration and production activities. For 2011, the Company anticipates expending an additional
approximately $24 million on oil and gas exploration projects. In addition, approximately $20 million will be
expended during 2011 for the purchase of 200 trucks-tractors for the transportation segment and approximately $7
million will be expended for the purchase of 50 trucks-tractors and trailers for the marketing segment with
funding for such purchase from available cash flow. These units will serve to replace older units and to increase
the marketing and transportation fleets. Funding for these 2011 projects will be from operating cash flow and
available working capital. However, the Company has also initiated discussion with a bank about establishing a
working capital line of credit in order to provide an additional source of capital should the need arise to fund the
anticipated projects. Further, within certain constraints, the proposed projects can be delayed or cancelled should
funding become unavailable.
From time to time, the Company may make cash prepayments to certain suppliers of crude oil and natural
gas for the Company’s marketing operations. Such prepayments totaled $5,150,000 as of December 31, 2010 and
such amounts will be recouped and advanced from month to month as the suppliers deliver product to the
Company. The Company also requires certain counterparties to post cash collateral with the Company in order to
support their purchase from the Company. Such cash collateral held by the Company totaled $1,700,000 as of
December 31, 2010. The Company also maintains a stand-by letter of credit facility with Wells Fargo Bank to
provide for the issuance of stand-by letters of credit to the Company’s suppliers of crude oil and natural gas (see
Note 1 to Financial Statements). The issuance of stand-by letters of credit enables the Company to avoid posting
cash collateral when procuring crude oil and natural gas supply. As of December 31, 2010, letters of credit
outstanding totaled $23.9 million. Management believes current cash balances, together with expected cash
generated from future operations, will be sufficient to meet short-term and long-term liquidity needs.
Historically, the Company pays an annual dividend in the fourth quarter of each year, and the Company
paid a $.54 per common share dividend or $2,277,000 to shareholders of record as of December 1, 2010.
The most significant item affecting future increases or decreases in liquidity is earnings from operations
and such earnings are dependent on the success of future operations (see Item 1A. Risk Factors in this annual
report of Form 10-K).
Off-balance Sheet Arrangements
The Company maintains certain operating lease arrangements primarily with independent truck owneroperators in order to provide truck-tractor equipment for the Company’s fleet. Any commitments with
independent truck owner-operators are on a month-to-month basis. In addition, the Company has entered into
certain lease and terminal access contracts in order to provide tank storage and dock access for its crude oil
marketing business. Such contracts require certain minimum monthly payments for the term of the contracts.
All operating lease commitments qualify for off-balance sheet treatment. Rental expense for the years ended
December 31, 2010, 2009, and 2008 was $5,870,000, $6,898,000 and $13,423,000, respectively. As of December
31, 2010, rental commitments under long-term non-cancelable operating leases and terminal arrangements for the
next five years are payable as follows: 2011 - $2,070,000; 2012 - $1,539,000; 2013 - $1,427,000; 2014 $748,000; 2015 – $480,000 and $1,080,000 thereafter.
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Contractual Cash Obligations
The Company has no capital lease obligations. The Company has entered into certain operating leasing
arrangements and terminal access agreements for tankage, truck-tractors, trailers and office space. A summary
of the payment periods for contractual cash obligations is as follows (in thousands):

Lease payments

2011

2012

2013

$ 2,070

$ 1,539

$ 1,427

2014
$

2015

748

$

480

Thereafter

Total

$ 1,080

$ 7,344

In addition to its lease financing obligations, the Company is also committed to purchase certain
quantities of crude oil and natural gas in connection with its marketing activities. Such commodity purchase
obligations are the basis for commodity sales, which generate the cash flow necessary to meet such purchase
obligations. Approximate commodity purchase obligations as of December 31, 2010 are as follows (in
thousands):
Crude Oil
Natural Gas

January
2011
$ 186,904
22,872
$ 209,776

Remaining
2011
$ 5,296
125
$ 5,421

2012
$

2013
-

$

$
$

-

Thereafter
$
$
-

Total
$ 192,200
22,997
$ 215,197

Insurance
From time to time, the marketplace for all forms of insurance enters into periods of severe cost increases.
In the past, during such cyclical periods, the Company has seen costs escalate to the point where desired levels of
insurance were either unavailable or unaffordable. The Company’s primary insurance needs are in the areas of
worker’s compensation, automobile and umbrella coverage for its trucking fleet and medical insurance for
employees. During each of 2010, 2009 and 2008, insurance costs were stable and totaled $10 million, $10.5
million and $10.6 million, respectively. Overall insurance cost may experience renewed rate increases during
2011. Since the Company is generally unable to pass on such cost increases, any increase will need to be
absorbed by existing operations.
Competition
In all phases of its operations, the Company encounters strong competition from a number of entities.
Many of these competitors possess financial resources substantially in excess of those of the Company. The
Company faces competition principally in establishing trade credit, pricing of available materials and quality of
service. In its oil and gas operation, the Company also competes for the acquisition of mineral properties. The
Company's marketing division competes with major oil companies and other large industrial concerns that own or
control significant refining and marketing facilities. These major oil companies may offer their products to others
on more favorable terms than those available to the Company. From time to time in recent years, there have been
supply imbalances for crude oil and natural gas in the marketplace. This in turn has led to significant fluctuations
in prices for crude oil and natural gas. As a result, there is a high degree of uncertainty regarding both the future
market price for crude oil and natural gas and the available margin spread between wholesale acquisition costs
and sales realization.
Critical Accounting Policies and Use of Estimates
Fair Value Accounting
The Company enters into certain forward commodity contracts that are required to be recorded at fair
value and such contracts are recorded as either an asset or liability measured at its fair value. Changes in fair
value are recognized immediately in earnings unless the derivatives qualify for, and the Company elects, cash
flow hedge accounting. The Company had no contracts designated for hedge accounting during 2010, 2009 and
2008.
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The Company utilizes a market approach to valuing its commodity contracts. On a contract by
contract, forward month by forward month basis, the Company obtains observable market data for
valuing its contracts. Such contracts typically have durations that are less than 18 months. As of
December 31, 2010, all of the Company’s market value measurements were based on either quoted
prices in active markets (Level 1 inputs) or from inputs based on observable market data (Level 2
inputs). See discussion under “Fair Value Measurements” in Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.
The Company’s fair value contracts give rise to market risk, which represents the potential loss that may
result from a change in the market value of a particular commitment. The Company monitors and manages its
exposure to market risk to ensure compliance with the Company’s risk management policies. Such policies are
regularly assessed to ensure their appropriateness given management’s objectives, strategies and current market
conditions.
Trade Accounts
Accounts receivable and accounts payable typically represent the most significant assets and liabilities of
the Company. Particularly within the Company’s energy marketing, oil and gas exploration, and production
operations, there is a high degree of interdependence with and reliance upon third parties (including transaction
counterparties) to provide adequate information for the proper recording of amounts receivable or payable.
Substantially all such third parties are larger firms providing the Company with the source documents for
recording trade activity. It is commonplace for these entities to retroactively adjust or correct such documents.
This typically requires the Company to absorb, benefit from, or pass along such corrections to another third party.
Due to the volume of and complexity of transactions and the high degree of interdependence with third
parties, this is a difficult area to control and manage. The Company manages this process by participating in a
monthly settlement process with each of its counterparties. Ongoing account balances are monitored monthly and
the Company attempts to gain the cooperation of such counterparties to reconcile outstanding balances. The
Company also places great emphasis on collecting cash balances due and paying only bonafide and properly
supported claims. In addition, the Company maintains and monitors its bad debt allowance. Nevertheless a
degree of risk remains due to the custom and practices of the industry.
Oil and Gas Reserve Estimate
The value of the capitalized cost of oil and natural gas exploration and production related assets are
dependent on underlying oil and natural gas reserve estimates. Reserve estimates are based on many subjective
factors. The accuracy of reserve estimates depends on the quantity and quality of geological data, production
performance data and reservoir engineering data, the pricing assumptions utilized as well as the skill and
judgment of petroleum engineers in interpreting such data. The process of estimating reserves requires frequent
revision of estimates (usually on an annual basis) as additional information becomes available. Calculations of
estimated future oil and natural gas revenues are also based on estimates of the timing of oil and natural gas
production, and there are no assurances that the actual timing of production will conform to or approximate such
estimates. Also, certain assumptions must be made with respect to pricing. The Company’s estimates assume
prices will remain constant from the date of the engineer’s estimates, except for changes reflected under natural
gas sales contracts. There can be no assurance that actual future prices will not vary as industry conditions,
governmental regulation, political conditions, economic conditions, weather conditions, market uncertainty and
other factors impact the market price for oil and natural gas.
The Company follows the successful efforts method of accounting, so only costs (including development
dry hole costs) associated with producing oil and natural gas wells are capitalized. Estimated oil and natural gas
reserve quantities are the basis for the rate of amortization under the Company’s units of production method for
depreciating, depleting and amortizing of oil and natural gas properties. Estimated oil and natural gas reserve
values also provide the standard for the Company’s periodic review of oil and natural gas properties for
impairment.
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Contingencies
From time to time as incident to its operations, the Company becomes involved in various accidents,
lawsuits and/or disputes. Primarily as an operator of an extensive trucking fleet, the Company is a party to motor
vehicle accidents, worker compensation claims or other items of general liability as are typical for the industry. In
addition, the Company has extensive operations that must comply with a wide variety of tax laws, environmental
laws and labor laws, among others. Should an incident occur, management evaluates the claim based on its
nature, the facts and circumstances and the applicability of insurance coverage. To the extent management
believes that such event may impact the financial condition of the Company, management will estimate the
monetary value of the claim and make appropriate accruals or disclosure as provided in the appropriate
accounting literature guidelines.
Revenue Recognition
The Company’s crude oil, natural gas and refined products marketing customers are invoiced daily or
monthly based on contractually agreed upon terms. Revenue is recognized in the month in which the physical
product is delivered to the customer. Where required, the Company also recognizes fair value or mark-to-market
gains and losses related to its commodity activities. A detailed discussion of the Company’s revenue recognition
policy is included in Note (1) of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
Transportation segment customers are invoiced, and the related revenue is recognized as the service is
provided. Oil and natural gas revenue from the Company’s interests in producing wells is recognized as title and
physical possession of the oil and natural gas passes to the purchaser.
Recent Accounting Pronouncements
In December 2008, the Securities and Exchange Commission released Final Rule, Modernization of Oil
and Gas Reporting to revise the existing Regulation S-K and Regulation S-X reporting requirements to align with
current industry practices and technological advances. The new disclosure requirements include provisions that
permit the use of new technologies to determine proved reserves if those technologies have been demonstrated
empirically to lead to reliable conclusions about reserve volumes. In addition, the new disclosure requirements
require a company to (a) disclose its internal control over reserves estimation and report the independence and
qualification of its reserves preparer or auditor, (b) file reports when a third party is relied upon to prepare
reserves estimates or conducts a reserve audit, (c) report oil and gas reserves using an average price based upon
the prior 12-month period rather than period-end prices and (d) disclose the development of any proved
undeveloped reserves (PUD’s) including the total quantity of PUD’s at year-end, material changes to PUD’s
during the year, investments and progress toward the development of PUD’s and an explanation of the reasons
why material concentrations of PUD’s have remained undeveloped for five years or more after disclosure as
PUD’s. The accounting changes resulting from changes in definitions and pricing assumptions should be treated
as a change in accounting principle that is inseparable from a change in accounting estimate, which is to be
applied prospectively. The disclosures required by this ruling became effective beginning December 31, 2009.
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In January 2010, the FASB issued FASB Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2010-03, “Oil and
Gas Reserve Estimations and Disclosures” (ASU No. 2010-03). This update aligns the current oil and gas reserve
estimation and disclosure requirements of the Extractive Industries – Oil and Gas topic of the ASC
(ASC Topic 932) with the changes required by the SEC final rule, “Modernization of Oil and Gas Reporting,” as
discussed above. ASU No. 2010-03 expands the disclosures required for equity method investments, revises the
definition of oil and gas producing activities to include nontraditional resources in reserves unless not intended to
be upgraded into synthetic oil or gas, amends the definition of proved oil and gas reserves to require 12-month
average pricing in estimating reserves, amends and adds definitions in the Master Glossary that is used in
estimating proved oil and gas quantities and provides guidance on geographic area with respect to disclosure of
information about significant reserves. ASU No. 2010-03 must be applied prospectively as a change in
accounting principle that is inseparable from a change in accounting estimate. The Company adopted
ASU No. 2010-03 effective December 31, 2009.
In January 2010, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2010-06, "Improving Disclosures
About Fair Value Measurements" (ASU 2010-06), which amends the Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures
Topic of the ASC (ASC Topic 820). Among other provisions, ASC Topic 820 establishes a fair value hierarchy
that prioritizes the relative reliability of inputs used in fair value measurements. The hierarchy gives highest
priority to Level 1 inputs that represent unadjusted quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets and
liabilities that the reporting entity has the ability to access at the measurement date. Level 2 inputs are directly or
indirectly observable inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1. Level 3 inputs are unobservable
inputs and have the lowest priority in the hierarchy. This amendment requires new disclosures on the value of,
and the reason for, transfers in and out of Levels 1 and 2 of the fair value hierarchy and additional disclosures
about purchases, sales, issuances and settlements within Level 3 fair value measurements. ASU 2010-06 also
clarifies existing disclosure requirements on levels of disaggregation and about inputs and valuation
techniques. ASU 2010-06 is effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after December 15,
2009, except for the requirement to provide additional disclosures regarding Level 3 measurements which is
effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2010.
Management believes the impact of other recently issued standards and updates, which are not yet
effective, will not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial position, results of operations
or cash flows upon adoption.

Item 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
The Company’s exposure to market risk includes potential adverse changes in interest rates and
commodity prices.
Interest Rate Risk
The Company had no long-term debt outstanding at December 31, 2010 and 2009. A hypothetical ten
percent adverse change in the floating rate would not have a material effect on the Company’s results of
operations for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010.
Commodity Price Risk
The Company’s major market risk exposure is in the pricing applicable to its marketing and production of
crude oil and natural gas. Realized pricing is primarily driven by the prevailing spot prices applicable to oil and
gas. Commodity price risk in the Company’s marketing operations represents the potential loss that may result
from a change in the market value of an asset or a commitment. From time to time, the Company enters into
forward contracts to minimize or hedge the impact of market fluctuations on its purchases of crude oil and natural
gas. The Company may also enter into price support contracts with certain customers to secure a floor price on the
purchase of certain supply. In each instance, the Company locks in a separate matching price support contract
with a third party in order to minimize the risk of these financial instruments. Substantially all forward contracts
fall within a six-month to eighteen-month term with no contracts extending longer than two years in duration.
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Certain forward contracts are recorded at fair value, depending on management’s assessments of
numerous accounting standards and positions that comply with generally accepted accounting principles in the
United States. The fair value of such contracts is reflected in the balance sheet as fair value assets and liabilities
and any revaluation is recognized on a net basis in the Company’s results of operations. See discussion under
“Fair Value Measurements” in Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
Historically, prices received for oil and natural gas sales have been volatile and unpredictable with price
volatility expected to continue. From January 1, 2009 through December 31, 2010 natural gas price realizations
ranged from a monthly low of $2.96 per mmbtu to a monthly high of $5.80 per mmbtu. Crude oil prices ranged
from a monthly average low of $35.99 per barrel to a high of $88.34 per barrel during the same period. A
hypothetical ten percent adverse change in average natural gas and crude oil prices, assuming no changes in
volume levels, would have reduced earnings by approximately $2,393,000 and $2,270,000 for the comparative
years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Adams Resources & Energy, Inc.
Houston, Texas
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Adams Resources & Energy, Inc. and
subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the related consolidated statements of
operations, shareholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,
2010. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to have,
nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audits included
consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Adams Resources & Energy, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the results
of their operations and their cash flows for the each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2010, in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
As discussed in Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, the Company changed its method of
accounting for oil and natural gas reserves and disclosures on December 31, 2009.

/s/DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
Houston, Texas
March 21, 2011
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ADAMS RESOURCES & ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands)
December 31,
2010
2009

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of
$1,064 and $1,681, respectively
Inventories
Fair value contracts
Income tax receivable
Prepayments

$

Total current assets
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:
Marketing
Transportation
Oil and gas (successful efforts method)
Other
Less – Accumulated depreciation, depletion and amortization
OTHER ASSETS:
Oil and gas property held for sale
Deferred income tax asset
Cash deposits and other
$

29,032

$

16,806

190,169
14,591
2,764
2,316
8,104

155,941
15,260
1,581
2,171
10,804

246,976

202,563

25,407
43,131
73,011
188
141,737

19,787
38,859
73,843
171
132,660

(94,148)
47,589

(90,355)
42,305

3,389
374
2,977
301,305

1,290
3,243
249,401

$

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable
Accounts payable – related party
Fair value contracts
Accrued and other liabilities
Current deferred income taxes
Total current liabilities

$

LONG-TERM DEBT
OTHER LIABILITIES:
Asset retirement obligations
Deferred taxes and other liabilities

200,763
9
1,478
3,894
854
206,998

$

158,176
75
1,331
3,872
737
164,191

-

-

1,390
2,762
211,150

1,315
94
165,000

-

-

422
11,693
78,040
90,155
301,305

422
11,693
71,686
83,801
249,401

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (NOTE 6)
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY:
Preferred stock, $1.00 par value, 960,000 shares authorized,
none outstanding
Common stock, $.10 par value, 7,500,000 shares authorized,
4,217,596 issued and outstanding
Contributed capital
Retained earnings
Total shareholders’ equity
$

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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ADAMS RESOURCES & ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In thousands, except per share data)
2010
REVENUES:
Marketing
Transportation
Oil and natural gas
COSTS AND EXPENSES:
Marketing
Transportation
Oil and gas operations
General and administrative
Depreciation, depletion and amortization

Operating Earnings (Loss)
Other Income (Expense):
Interest income
Interest expense

Years Ended December 31,
2009
2008

$ 2,144,082
56,867
11,021
2,211,970

$ 1,889,583
44,895
8,650
1,943,128

$ 4,074,677
67,747
17,248
4,159,672

2,124,491
45,956
8,116
9,044
11,817
2,199,424

1,869,400
38,797
8,621
9,589
10,320
1,936,727

4,074,614
59,659
13,833
9,667
13,373
4,171,146

12,546

6,401

191
(36)

Earnings (loss) before income taxes
Income Tax (Provision) Benefit:
Current
Deferred

Net Earnings (Loss)

$

EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE:
Basic and diluted net earnings (loss) per share

$

125
(25)

1,103
(187)

12,701

6,501

(10,558)

(371)
(3,699)
(4,070)

(1,280)
(1,072)
(2,352)

(1,689)
6,675
4,986

8,631

$

2.05 $

4,149

$

(5,572)

.98 $

(1.32)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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(11,474)

ADAMS RESOURCES & ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
(In thousands)
Common
Stock
BALANCE, January 1, 2008
Net earnings
Dividends paid on common stock
BALANCE, December 31, 2008
Net earnings (loss)
Dividends paid on common stock
BALANCE, December 31, 2009
Net earnings
Dividends paid on common stock
BALANCE, December 31, 2010

$

$

$

$

Contributed
Capital

422
422
422
422

$

$

$

$

11,693
11,693
11,693
11,693

Retained
Earnings
$

$

$

$

77,327
(5,572)
(2,109)
69,646
4,149
(2,109)
71,686
8,631
(2,277)
78,040

Total
Shareholders’
Equity
$

$

$

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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89,442
(5,572)
(2,109)
81,761
4,149
(2,109)
83,801
8,631
(2,277)
90,155

ADAMS RESOURCES & ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)

Years Ended December 31,
2010
2009
2008
CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATIONS:
Net earnings (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings (loss) to net cash
from operating activitiesDepreciation, depletion and amortization
Property sale (gains) losses
Dry hole costs incurred
Impairment of oil and natural gas properties
Provision for doubtful accounts
Deferred income taxes
Net change in fair value contracts
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable
Decrease (increase) in inventories
Decrease (increase) in income tax receivable
Decrease (increase) in prepayments
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in accrued and other liabilities
Other changes, net
Net cash provided by operating activities

$

8,631

$

4,149

$

(5,572)

11,817
94
1,894
2,224
29
3,699
(1,036)
(34,257)
669
(145)
2,700
40,521
(406)
494
36,928

10,320
(177)
661
3,773
430
1,072
251
(36,515)
(1,053)
1,458
(5,580)
43,069
(58)
485
22,285

13,373
354
2,421
5,911
1,059
(6,675)
1,238
141,250
569
(1,075)
(1,456)
(137,548)
223
(433)
13,639

(22,421)
(151)
147
(22,425)

(22,390)
(192)
1,004
(21,578)

(17,688)
502
167
10,000
(10,000)
(17,019)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Dividend payments
Net cash (used in) financing activities

(2,277)
(2,277)

(2,109)
(2,109)

(2,109)
(2,109)

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

12,226

(1,402)

(5,489)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

16,806

18,208

23,697

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Property and equipment additions
Insurance and state collateral (deposits) refunds
Proceeds from property sales
Redemption of short-term investments
Investment in short-term investments
Net cash (used in) investing activities

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

$

29,032

$

16,806

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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$

18,208

ADAMS RESOURCES & ENERGY, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation
The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Adams Resources & Energy,
Inc., a Delaware corporation, and its wholly owned subsidiaries (the "Company") after elimination of all
intercompany accounts and transactions. The impact on the accompanying financial statements of events
occurring after December 31, 2010 has been evaluated through the date of issuance of these financial statements.
Nature of Operations
The Company is engaged in the business of crude oil, natural gas and petroleum products marketing, as
well as tank truck transportation of liquid chemicals and oil and gas exploration and production. Its primary area
of operation is within a 1,000 mile radius of Houston, Texas.
Cash, Cash Equivalents and Short-term Investments
Cash and cash equivalents include any Treasury bill, commercial paper, money market fund or federal
funds with maturity of 90 days or less. Depending on cash availability and market conditions, investments in
corporate and municipal bonds may also be made from time to time. The Company invests in tax-free municipal
securities in order to enhance the after-tax rate of return from short-term investments of cash. The Company had
no corporate bonds or municipal investments as of December 31, 2010 and 2009. Cash and cash equivalents are
maintained with major financial institutions and such deposits may exceed the amount of Federally backed
insurance provided. While the Company regularly monitors the financial stability of such institutions, cash and
cash equivalents ultimately remain at risk subject to the financial viability of such institutions.
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
Accounts receivable result from sales of crude oil, natural gas and refined products as well as from
trucking services. Marketing business wholesale level sales of crude oil and natural gas comprise in excess of
90 percent of accounts receivable and under industry practices, such items are “settled” and paid in cash within
25 days of the month following the transaction date. For such receivables, an allowance for doubtful accounts is
determined based on specific account identification. The balance of accounts receivable results primarily from
sales of refined petroleum products and trucking services. For this component of receivables, the allowance for
doubtful accounts is determined based on a review of specific accounts combined with a review of the general
status of the aging of all accounts.
Inventories
Crude oil and petroleum product inventories are carried at the lower of average cost or market. Petroleum
products inventory includes gasoline, lubricating oils and other petroleum products purchased for resale.
Components of inventory are as follows (in thousands):
December 31,
2010
2009
$ 12,909
$ 14,053
1,682
1,207

Crude oil
Petroleum products

$ 14,591
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$ 15,260

Prepayments
The components of prepayments and other are as follows (in thousands):
December 31,
2010
2009
Cash collateral deposits for commodity purchases
$ 5,150
$
7,670
Insurance premiums
1,954
2,478
Natural gas imbalances
330
89
Rents, license and other
670
567
$

8,104

$

10,804

Property and Equipment
Expenditures for major renewals and betterments are capitalized, and expenditures for maintenance and
repairs are expensed as incurred. Interest costs incurred in connection with major capital expenditures are
capitalized and amortized over the lives of the related assets. When properties are retired or sold, the related cost
and accumulated depreciation, depletion and amortization ("DD&A") is removed from the accounts and any gain
or loss is reflected in earnings.
Oil and gas exploration and development expenditures are accounted for in accordance with the
successful efforts method of accounting. Direct costs of acquiring developed or undeveloped leasehold acreage,
including lease bonus, brokerage and other fees, are capitalized. Exploratory drilling costs are initially capitalized
until the properties are evaluated and determined to be either productive or nonproductive. Such evaluations are
made on a quarterly basis. If an exploratory well is determined to be nonproductive, the costs of drilling the well
are charged to expense. Costs incurred to drill and complete development wells, including dry holes, are
capitalized. As of December 31, 2010, the Company had no unevaluated or suspended exploratory drilling costs.
Depreciation, depletion and amortization of the cost of proved oil and gas properties is calculated using
the unit-of-production method. The reserve base used to calculate depreciation, depletion and amortization for
leasehold acquisition costs and the cost to acquire proved properties is the sum of proved developed reserves and
proved undeveloped reserves. For lease and well equipment, development costs and successful exploration
drilling costs, the reserve base includes only proved developed reserves. All other property and equipment is
depreciated using the straight-line method over the estimated average useful lives of three to twenty years.
The Company periodically reviews its long-lived assets for impairment whenever there is evidence that
the carrying value of such assets may not be recoverable. Any impairment recognized is permanent and may not
be restored. Producing oil and gas properties are reviewed quarterly for impairment triggers on a field-by-field
basis. For properties requiring impairment, the fair value is estimated based on an internal discounted cash-flow
model. Cash flows are developed based on estimated future production and prices and then discounted using an
internal rate of return consistent with that used by the Company in evaluating cash flows for other assets of a
similar nature. For the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 there were $946,000, $1,350,000 and
$3,078,000 impairment provisions on producing oil and gas properties, respectively.
Fair value measurements for producing oil and gas properties that were subject to fair value impairment
for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 summarized as follows (in thousands):
Producing Properties
Subject to Fair
Value Impairment
2010
2009
$ 2,220
$ 1,744
1,802
960
(753)
(751)
(946)
(1,350)
$ 2,323
$ 603

Net book value at January 1, 2010
Property additions
Depletion taken
Impairment valuation loss
Net book at December 31, 2010
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Fair value measurements for producing oil and gas properties are based on Level 3 – Significant
Unobservable Inputs – (see Fair Value Measurements below).
On a quarterly basis, management also evaluates the carrying value of non-producing oil and gas
properties and may deem them impaired for lack of drilling activity. Accordingly, impairment provisions on nonproducing properties totaling $1,277,000, $2,423,000 and $2,834,000 were recorded for the years ended
December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively. For non-producing properties, impairments are determined
based on management’s knowledge of current geological evaluations, drilling results and activity in the area and
intent to drill as it relates to the remaining term of the underlying oil and gas leasehold interest.
Cash Deposits and Other Assets
The Company has established certain deposits to support participation in its liability insurance program
and remittance of state crude oil severance taxes and other state collateral deposits. Insurance collateral deposits
are invested at the discretion of the Company’s insurance carrier and such investments primarily consist of
intermediate term federal government bonds and bonds backed by federal agencies. Components of cash deposits
and other assets are as follows (in thousands):
December 31,
Insurance collateral deposits
State collateral deposits
Materials and supplies

2010
2,291
166
520
$ 2,977

$

2009
2,648
271
324
$ 3,243

$

Revenue Recognition
Commodity purchase and sale contracts utilized by the Company’s marketing businesses qualify as
derivative instruments. Further, all natural gas, as well as certain specifically identified crude oil purchase and
sale contracts, are designated as trading activities. From the time of contract origination, such trading activity
contracts are marked-to-market and recorded on a net revenue basis in the accompanying financial statements.
Substantially all crude oil and refined products purchase and sale contracts qualify and are designated as
non-trading activities and the Company elects the normal purchases and sales exception methodology for such
activity. For normal purchase and sale activities, the Company’s customers are invoiced monthly based upon
contractually agreed upon terms with revenue recognized in the month in which the physical product is delivered
to the customer. Such sales are recorded gross in the financial statements because the Company takes title to and
has risk of loss for the products, is the primary obligor for the purchase, establishes the sale price independently
with a third party and maintains credit risk associated with the sale of the product.
Certain crude oil contracts may be with a single counterparty to provide for similar quantities of crude oil
to be bought and sold at different locations. These contracts are entered into for a variety of reasons, including
effecting the transportation of the commodity, to minimize credit exposure, and/or to meet the competitive
demands of the customer. Such buy/sell arrangements are reflected on a net revenue basis in the accompanying
financial statements. The Company’s gross revenues for crude oil contracts with a single counterparty were
$1,415,844,000, $874,386,000 and $1,112,903,000 for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008,
respectively.
Transportation customers are invoiced, and the related revenue is recognized, as the service is provided.
Oil and gas revenue from the Company’s interests in producing wells is recognized as title and physical
possession of the oil and gas passes to the purchaser.
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Letter of Credit Facility
The Company maintains a Credit and Security Agreement with Wells Fargo Bank to provide a $40
million stand-by letter of credit facility. The Wells Fargo facility provides for the issuance of up to $40 million of
stand-by letters of credit to support the Company’s crude oil and natural gas purchases within the marketing
segment. This facility is collateralized by the eligible accounts receivable within those operations. Stand-by
letters of credit issued totaled $23.9 million and 24.5 million as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
The issued stand-by letters of credit are cancelled as the underlying purchase obligations are satisfied by cash
payment when due. The letter of credit facility places certain restrictions on the Company’s Gulfmark Energy,
Inc. and Adams Resources Marketing, Ltd. subsidiaries. Such restrictions included the maintenance of a
combined 1.1 to 1.0 current ratio and the maintenance of positive net earnings excluding inventory valuation
changes, as defined, among other restrictions. Management believes the Company is currently in compliance
with all such financial covenants.
Statement of Cash Flows
Interest paid totaled $36,000, $25,000 and $187,000 during the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and
2008, respectively. Income taxes paid during these same periods totaled $532,000, $1,152,000, and $3,768,000,
respectively. The Company also received a $2,000,000 income tax refund during 2009. Non-cash investing
activities for property and equipment in accounts payable were $2,868,000, $440,000 and $561,000 as of
December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively. There were no significant non-cash financing activities in any
of the periods reported.
Earnings Per Share
Earnings per share are based on the weighted average number of shares of common stock and potentially
dilutive common stock shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of shares outstanding
was 4,217,596 for 2010, 2009 and 2008. There were no potentially dilutive securities during those periods.
Share-Based Payments
During the periods presented herein, the Company had no stock-based employee compensation plans, nor
any other share-based payment arrangements.
Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Examples of significant estimates used in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements include the oil and gas reserve volumes that form the foundation
for (1) calculating depreciation, depletion and amortization and (2) deriving cash flow estimates to assess
impairment triggers or estimated values associated with oil and gas property, revenue accruals, the provision for
bad debts, insurance related accruals, income tax timing differences, contingencies and valuation of fair value
contracts.
Income Taxes
Income taxes are accounted for under the provisions of the Income Taxes Topic of the ASC (ASC
Topic 740). ASC Topic 740 requires the asset and liability approach for accounting for income taxes. Under this
approach, deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized based on anticipated future tax consequences
attributable to differences between financial statement carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and their
respective tax basis (see Note 2).
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Use of Derivative Instruments
The Company’s marketing segment is involved in the purchase and sale of crude oil and natural gas. The
Company seeks to make a profit by procuring such commodities as they are produced and then delivering such
products to the end users or intermediate use marketplace. As is typical for the industry, such transactions are
made pursuant to the terms of forward month commodity purchase and/or sale contracts. These contracts meet
the definition of a derivative instrument and therefore, the Company accounts for such contracts at fair value,
unless the normal purchase and sale exception is applicable. The Company’s objective of entering into
commodity contracts is not to manage commodity price risk nor is the objective to trade or speculate on
commodity prices. Rather, such underlying contracts are standard for the industry and are the governing document
for the Company’s crude oil and natural gas wholesale distribution businesses. The accounting methodology
utilized by the Company for its commodity contracts is further discussed below under the caption “Fair Value
Measurements”.
None of the Company’s derivative instruments have been designated as hedging instruments and the
estimated fair value of forward month commodity contracts (derivatives) is reflected in the accompanying
Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2010 as follows (in thousands):

Current
Assets
Asset Derivatives
- Fair Value Commodity
Contracts at Gross Valuation
Liability Derivatives
- Fair Value Commodity
Contracts at Gross Valuation
Less Counterparty Offsets
As Reported Fair Value Contracts

$

8,094

$

(5,330)
2,764

Balance Sheet Location and Amount
Other
Current
Assets
Liabilities

$

-

$

-

$

$

-

6,808
(5,330)
1,478

Other
Liabilities

$

-

$

-

Forward month commodity contracts (derivatives) are reflected in the accompanying Consolidated
Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2009 as follows (in thousands):

Current
Assets
Asset Derivatives
- Fair Value Commodity
Contracts at Gross Valuation
Liability Derivatives
- Fair Value Commodity
Contracts at Gross Valuation
Less Counterparty Offsets
As Reported Fair Value Contracts

$

2,035

$

(454)
1,581

Balance Sheet Location and Amount
Other
Current
Assets
Liabilities

$

-

$

-

$

$

-

1,785
(454)
1,331

Other
Liabilities

$

-

$

-

The Company only enters into commodity contracts with counterparties it believes to be creditworthy or
obtains collateral support for such activities. No credit loss provision applies to the Company’s forward
commodity contract valuations. As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Company was not holding nor had it
posted any collateral to support its forward month fair value derivative activity. The Company is not subject to
any credit-risk related trigger events.
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Forward month commodity contracts (derivatives) are reflected in the accompanying Consolidated
Statement of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 as follows (in thousands):

Location

2010

Revenues - marketing

$ 1,036

Gain (Loss)
2009

2008

$ (251)

$ (1,238)

Fair Value Measurements
The carrying amount reported in the balance sheet for cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and
accounts payable approximates fair value because of the immediate or short-term maturity of these financial
instruments.
Fair value contracts consist of derivative financial instruments and are recorded as either an asset or
liability measured at its fair value. Changes in fair value are recognized immediately in earnings unless the
derivatives qualify for, and the Company elects, cash flow hedge accounting. The Company had no contracts
designated for hedge accounting during any current reporting periods.
Fair value estimates are based on assumptions that market participants would use when pricing an asset or
liability and the Company uses a fair value hierarchy of three levels that prioritizes the information used to
develop those assumptions. Currently, for all items presented herein, the Company utilizes a market approach to
valuing its contracts. On a contract by contract, forward month by forward month basis, the Company obtains
observable market data for valuing its contracts. The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted
prices in active markets and the lowest priority to unobservable data. The fair value hierarchy is summarized as
follows:
Level 1 – quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that may be accessed at the
measurement date. Active markets are those in which transactions for the asset or liability
occur in sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing
basis. The Company utilizes the New York Mercantile Exchange “NYMEX” for its
Level 1 valuations.
Level 2 – (a) quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, (b) quoted prices for
identical assets or liabilities but in markets that are not actively traded or in which little
information is released to the public, (c) observable inputs other than quoted prices and (d)
inputs derived from observable market data. Source data for Level 2 inputs include
information provided by the NYMEX, the Intercontinental Exchange “ICE”, published
price data and indices, third party price survey data and broker provided forward price
statistics.
Level 3 – Unobservable market data inputs for assets or liabilities.
As of December 31, 2010, the Company’s fair value assets and liabilities are summarized and categorized
as follows (in thousands):
Market Data Inputs
Level 1
Level 2
Level 3
Quoted Prices
Observable
Unobservable
Derivatives
- Current assets
- Current liabilities
Net Value

$
$

(118)
(118)

$

2,764
(1,360)
$ 1,404
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$
$

-

Total
$

2,764
(1,478)
$ 1,286

As of December 31, 2009, the Company’s fair value assets and liabilities are summarized and categorized
as follows (in thousands):

Level 1
Quoted Prices
Derivatives
- Current assets
- Current liabilities
Net Value

$
$

Market Data Inputs
Level 2
Level 3
Observable
Unobservable

224
224

$

1,357
(1,331)
$
26

$

-

$

Total
$

1,581
(1,331)
$
250

The Company’s gross transaction volumes for physically settled energy trading contracts were
approximately 93,827,000 mmbtu’s, 132,488,000 mmbtu’s, and 159,505,000 mmbtu’s in 2010, 2009 and 2008,
respectively.
When determining fair value measurements, the Company makes credit valuation adjustments to reflect
both its own nonperformance risk and its counterparty’s nonperformance risk. When adjusting the fair value of
derivative contracts for the effect of nonperformance risk, the impact of netting and any applicable credit
enhancements, such as collateral postings, thresholds, and guarantees are considered. Credit valuation
adjustments utilize Level 3 inputs, such as credit scores to evaluate the likelihood of default by the Company or
its counterparties. As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, credit valuation adjustments were not significant to the
overall valuation of the Company’s fair value contracts. As a result, applicable fair value assets and liabilities in
their entirety are classified in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.
The following table illustrates the factors impacting the change in the net value of the Company’s fair
value contracts for the year ended December 31, 2010 (in thousands):
Level 1
Quoted Prices
$
224
(224)

Net Fair Value January 1,
- Net realized (gains) losses
- Net unrealized gains (losses)
at inception of contract
Net Fair Value December 31,

$

(118)
(118)

Level 2
Observable
$
26
(26)

$

1,404
1,404

$

$

Total
250
(250)
1,286
1,286

The following table illustrates the factors impacting the change in the net value of the Company’s fair
value contracts for the year ended December 31, 2009 (in thousands):
Level 1
Quoted Prices
$
1,029
(1,029)

Net Fair Value January 1,
- Net realized (gains) losses
- Net unrealized gains (losses)
at inception of contract
Net Fair Value December 31,

$
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224
224

Level 2
Observable
$
(528)
528

$

26
26

$

$

Total
501
(501)
250
250

Asset Retirement Obligations
The Company records a long-term liability for the estimated retirement costs associated with certain
tangible long-lived assets. The estimated fair value of asset retirement obligations are recorded in the period in
which they are incurred and the corresponding cost capitalized by increasing the carrying amount of the related
long-lived asset. The liability is accreted to its then present value each period, and the capitalized cost is
depreciated over the useful life of the related asset. If the liability is settled for an amount other than the recorded
amount, a gain or loss is recognized. A summary of the Company’s asset retirement obligations is presented as
follows (in thousands):
2010
$ 1,315
76
75
(76)
$ 1,390

Balance on January 1,
-Liabilities incurred
-Accretion of discount
-Liabilities settled
-Revisions to estimates
Balance on December 31,

2009
$ 1,260
44
74
(60)
(3)
$ 1,315

In addition to an accrual for asset retirement obligations, the Company maintains $75,000 in escrow cash,
which is legally restricted for the potential purpose of settling asset retirement costs in accordance with certain
state regulations. Such cash deposits are included in other assets in the accompanying balance sheet.
Recent Accounts Pronouncement
In December 2008, the Securities and Exchange Commission released Final Rule, Modernization of Oil
and Gas Reporting to revise the existing Regulation S-K and Regulation S-X reporting requirements to align with
current industry practices and technological advances. The new disclosure requirements include provisions that
permit the use of new technologies to determine proved reserves if those technologies have been demonstrated
empirically to lead to reliable conclusions about reserve volumes. In addition, the new disclosure requirements
require a company to (a) disclose its internal control over reserves estimation and report the independence and
qualification of its reserves preparer or auditor, (b) file reports when a third party is relied upon to prepare
reserves estimates or conducts a reserve audit, (c) report oil and gas reserves using an average price based upon
the prior 12-month period rather than period-end prices and (d) disclose the development of any proved
undeveloped reserves (PUD’s) including the total quantity of PUD’s at year-end, material changes to PUD’s
during the year, investments and progress toward the development of PUD’s and an explanation of the reasons
why material concentrations of PUD’s have remained undeveloped for five years or more after disclosure as
PUD’s. The accounting changes resulting from changes in definitions and pricing assumptions should be treated
as a change in accounting principle that is inseparable from a change in accounting estimate, which is to be
applied prospectively. The disclosures required by this ruling became effective beginning December 31, 2009.
In January 2010, the FASB issued FASB Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2010-03, “Oil and
Gas Reserve Estimations and Disclosures” (ASU No. 2010-03). This update aligns the current oil and gas reserve
estimation and disclosure requirements of the Extractive Industries – Oil and Gas topic of the ASC
(ASC Topic 932) with the changes required by the SEC final rule, “Modernization of Oil and Gas Reporting,” as
discussed above. ASU No. 2010-03 expands the disclosures required for equity method investments, revises the
definition of oil and gas producing activities to include nontraditional resources in reserves unless not intended to
be upgraded into synthetic oil or gas, amends the definition of proved oil and gas reserves to require 12-month
average pricing in estimating reserves, amends and adds definitions in the Master Glossary that is used in
estimating proved oil and gas quantities and provides guidance on geographic area with respect to disclosure of
information about significant reserves. ASU No. 2010-03 must be applied prospectively as a change in
accounting principle that is inseparable from a change in accounting estimate. The Company adopted
ASU No. 2010-03 effective December 31, 2009.
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In January 2010, the FASB issued ASU 2010-06, "Improving Disclosures About Fair Value
Measurements" (ASU 2010-06), which amends the Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures Topic of the ASC
(ASC Topic 820). Among other provisions, ASC Topic 820 establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the
relative reliability of inputs used in fair value measurements. The hierarchy gives highest priority to Level 1
inputs that represent unadjusted quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities that the
reporting entity has the ability to access at the measurement date. Level 2 inputs are directly or indirectly
observable inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs and
have the lowest priority in the hierarchy. This amendment requires new disclosures on the value of, and the
reason for, transfers in and out of Levels 1 and 2 of the fair value hierarchy and additional disclosures about
purchases, sales, issuances and settlements within Level 3 fair value measurements. ASU 2010-06 also clarifies
existing disclosure requirements on levels of disaggregation and about inputs and valuation techniques. ASU
2010-06 is effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2009, except for the
requirement to provide additional disclosures regarding Level 3 measurements which is effective for interim and
annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2010.
Management believes the impact of other recently issued standards and updates, which are not yet
effective, will not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial position, results of operations
or cash flows upon adoption.
(2) Income Taxes
The following table shows the components of the Company's income tax (provision) benefit (in
thousands):
Years ended December 31,
2010
2009
2008
Current:
Federal
$ (350)
$ (649)
$ (1,349)
State
721
(631)
(340)
371
(1,280)
(1,689)
Deferred:
Federal
3,688
(1,286)
6,199
State
11
214
476
$ 4,070
$ (2,352)
$ 4,986
Taxes computed at the corporate federal income tax rate reconcile to the reported income tax (provision)
as follows (in thousands):
Years ended December 31,
2010
2009
2008
$ (4,445)
$ (2,275)
$ 3,696
(476)
(270)
88
534
186
797
62
201
320
116
7
23
$ (4,070)
$ (2,352)
$ 4,986

Statutory federal income tax (provision) benefit
State income tax (provision) benefit
Federal statutory depletion
Domestic production deduction
Foreign investment write-off
Reduction of prior uncertain tax position
Other
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Deferred income taxes reflect the net difference between the financial statement carrying amounts and the
underlying tax basis in such items. The components of the federal deferred tax asset (liability) are as follows (in
thousands):
Years Ended December 31,
2010
2009
Current deferred tax asset (liability)
Bad debts
Prepaid insurance
Mark-to-market contracts

$

372
(776)
(450)

Net current deferred tax (liability)
Long-term deferred tax asset (liability)
Property
Uniform capitalization
Insurance returns
Other
Net long-term deferred tax asset (liability)
Net deferred tax asset (liability)

$

$

421
(1,070)
(88)

(854)

(737)

(2,885)
396
(45)
243
(2,291)

884
322
(166)
250
1,290

(3,145)

$

553

Financial statement recognition and measurement of positions taken, or expected to be taken, by an entity
in its income tax returns must consider the uncertainty and judgment involved in the determination and filing of
income taxes. Tax positions taken in an income tax return that are recognized in the financial statements must
satisfy a more-likely-than-not recognition threshold, assuming that the tax position will be examined by taxing
authorities with full knowledge of all relevant information. As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Company
had accrued approximately $27,000 and $130,000 including approximately $8,000 and $58,000 of potential
interest and penalty, respectively, applicable to certain open and unfiled state tax returns. A reconciliation of the
unrecognized tax benefits is as follows (in thousands):
2010
Balance as of January 1,
Additions for tax positions of prior years
Reductions of prior positions
Balance as of December 31,

$

$

2009
72
(53)
19

$

$

63
9
72

The Company has filed all remaining open returns and expects final resolution with all states by year-end
2011. As the actual tax payments are made, the accrual is reduced. The Company has no other unrecognized tax
benefits. Interest and penalties associated with income tax liabilities are classified as income tax expense.
The earliest tax years remaining open for audit for Federal and major states of operations are as follows:
Earliest Open
Tax Year
Federal
Texas
Louisiana
Michigan

2007
2006
2007
2007
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(3) Concentration of Credit Risk
Credit risk represents the amount of loss the Company would absorb if its customers failed to perform
pursuant to contractual terms. Management of credit risk involves a number of considerations, such as the
financial profile of the customer, the value of collateral held, if any, specific terms and duration of the contractual
agreement, and the customer's sensitivity to economic developments. The Company has established various
procedures to manage credit exposure, including initial credit approval, credit limits, and rights of offset. Letters
of credit and guarantees are also utilized to limit credit risk. Accounts receivable associated with crude oil and
natural gas marketing activities comprise approximately 90 percent of the Company’s total receivables and
industry practice requires payment for such sales to occur within 25 days of the end of the month following a
transaction. The Company’s customer mix, credit policies and the relatively short duration of receivables mitigate
the uncertainty typically associated with receivables management.
The Company’s largest customers consist of large multinational integrated oil companies and utilities. In
addition, the Company transacts business with independent oil producers, major chemical concerns, crude oil and
natural gas trading companies and a variety of commercial energy users. Within this group of customers the
Company generally derives up to 50 percent of its revenues from two to three large crude oil refining concerns.
While the Company has ongoing established relationships with certain domestic refiners of crude oil, alternative
markets are readily available since the Company supplies less than one percent of U. S. domestic refiner demand.
As a fungible commodity delivered to major Gulf Coast supply points, the Company’s crude oil sales can be
readily delivered to alternative end markets. Management believes that a loss of any of those customers where the
Company currently derives more than 10 percent of its revenues would not have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s operations.
The Company had accounts receivable from four customers that comprised 22.4 percent, 16.2 percent,
13.7 percent and 10.6 percent, respectively, of total accounts receivable at December 31, 2010. Five customers
comprised 35.8 percent, 20.2 percent, 17.9 percent, 13 percent and 11 percent, respectively, of total revenues
during 2010. The Company had accounts receivable from three customers that comprised 17.8 percent, 12.6
percent and 10.8 percent, respectively, of total accounts receivable at December 31, 2009. Three customers
comprised 39.4 percent, 17.7 percent and 15.7 percent, respectively, of total revenues during 2009. The Company
had accounts receivable from one customer that comprised 18.7 percent of total receivables at December 31,
2008. Such customer also comprised 16.3 percent and a second customer comprised 40.3 percent, respectively, of
total revenues during 2008.
An allowance for doubtful accounts is provided where appropriate and accounts receivable presented
herein are net of allowances for doubtful accounts of $1,064,000 and $1,681,000 at December 31, 2010 and 2009,
respectively. As reflected in the table below, during 2009 and 2008 the Company increased its provision for bad
debts as a result of a deteriorating economic outlook for the U. S. economy particularly as it impacted the
collectability of the Company’s diesel fuel sales to the construction industry.
An analysis of the changes in the allowance for doubtful accounts is presented as follows (in thousands):

Balance, beginning of year
Provisions for bad debts
Less: Write-offs and recoveries
Balance, end of year

2010
$
1,681
29
(646)
$
1,064

2009
$
1,251
704
(274)
$
1,681

2008
$

$

192
1,099
(40)
1,251

(4) Employee Benefits
The Company maintains a 401(k) savings plan for the benefit of its employees. The Company’s
contributory expenses for the plan were $565,000, $578,000 and $607,000 in 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
No other pension or retirement plans are maintained by the Company.
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(5) Transactions with Affiliates
Mr. K. S. Adams, Jr., Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, and certain of his family partnerships and
affiliates have participated as working interest owners with the Company’s subsidiary, Adams Resources
Exploration Corporation. Mr. Adams and such affiliates participate on terms similar to those afforded other nonaffiliated working interest owners. In recent years, such related party transactions generally result after the
Company has first identified oil and gas prospects of interest. Typically the available dollar commitment to
participate in such transactions is greater than the amount management is comfortable putting at risk. In such
event, the Company first determines the percentage of the transaction it wants to obtain, which allows a related
party to participate in the investment to the extent there is excess available. In those instances where there was no
excess availability there has been no related party participation. Similarly, related parties are not required to
participate, nor is the Company obligated to offer any such participation to a related or other party. When such
related party transactions occur, they are individually reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee comprised
of the independent directors on the Company’s Board of Directors. During 2010 and 2009, the Company’s
investment commitments totaled approximately $11.7 million and $12.7 million, respectively, in those oil and gas
projects where a related party was also participating in such investments. As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the
Company owed a combined net total of $9,000 and $75,000, respectively, to these related parties. In connection
with the operation of certain oil and gas properties, the Company also charges such related parties for
administrative overhead primarily as prescribed by the Council of Petroleum Accountants Society Bulletin 5.
Such overhead recoveries totaled $160,000, $150,000 and $134,000 for the years ended December 31, 2010,
2009, and 2008, respectively.
The Company also enters into certain transactions in the normal course of business with other affiliated
entities including direct cost reimbursement for shared phone and secretarial services. For the years ended
December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, the affiliated entities charged the Company $43,000, $62,000 and $51,000,
respectively, of expense reimbursement and the Company charged the affiliates $117,000, $127,000 and $97,000,
respectively, for such expense reimbursements.
(6) Commitments and Contingencies
Rental expense primarily results from payments to truck owner-operators for use of their equipment and
services on a month-to-month basis. The Company has also entered into longer term operating lease arrangements
for tractors, trailers, office space, and other equipment and facilities. In addition, the Company has entered into
certain lease and terminal access contracts in order to provide tank storage and dock access for its crude oil
marketing business. Such contracts require certain minimum monthly payments for the term of the contracts.
Rental expense for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009, and 2008 was $5,870,000, $6,898,000 and
$13,423,000, respectively. At December 31, 2010, commitments under long-term non-cancelable operating
leases and terminal arrangements for the next five years and thereafter are payable as follows: 2011 - $2,070,000;
2012 - $1,539,000; 2013 - $1,427,000; 2014 - $748,000; 2015 - $480,000 and $1,080,000 thereafter.
Under certain of the Company’s automobile and workers’ compensation insurance policies, the Company
can either receive a return of premium paid or be assessed for additional premiums up to pre-established limits.
Additionally under the policies in certain instances the risk of insured losses is shared with a group of similarly
situated entities. The Company has appropriately recognized estimated expenses and liabilities related to these
policies for losses incurred but not reported to the Company or its insurance carrier of $2,125,911 and $1,934,359
as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
From time to time as incidental to its operations, the Company may become involved in various lawsuits
and/or disputes. Primarily as an operator of an extensive trucking fleet, the Company is a party to motor vehicle
accidents, worker compensation claims and other items of general liability as would be typical for the industry.
Management of the Company is presently unaware of any claims against the Company that are either outside the
scope of insurance coverage, or that may exceed the level of insurance coverage, and could potentially represent a
material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position or results of operations.
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(7) Guarantees
Pursuant to arranging operating lease financing for truck-tractors and tank trailers, individual subsidiaries
of the Company may guarantee the lessor a minimum residual equipment sales value upon the expiration of a
lease and sale of the underlying equipment. The Company believes performance under these guarantees to be
remote. Aggregate guaranteed residual values for tractors and trailers under operating leases as of
December 31, 2010 are as follows (in thousands):

Equipment residual values

2011
$ 181

2012
$ 72

2013
$ 216

Thereafter
$
-

Total
$ 469

In connection with certain contracts for the purchase and resale of branded motor fuels, the Company has
received certain price discounts from its suppliers toward the purchase of gasoline and diesel fuel. Such discounts
have been passed through to the Company’s customers as an incentive to offset a portion of the costs associated
with offering branded motor fuels for sale to the general public. Under the terms of the supply contracts, the
Company and its customers are not obligated to return the price discounts, provided the gasoline service station
offering such product for sale remains as a branded station for periods ranging from three to ten years. The
Company has a number of customers and stations operating under such arrangements, and the Company’s
customers are contractually obligated to remain a branded dealer for the required periods of time. Should the
Company’s customers seek to void such contracts, the Company would be obligated to return a portion of such
discounts received to its suppliers. As of December 31, 2010, the maximum amount of such potential obligation
is approximately $1,886,000. Management of the Company believes its customers will adhere to their branding
obligations and no such refunds will result.
Presently, neither Adams Resources & Energy, Inc. (“ARE”) nor any of its subsidiaries has any other
types of guarantees outstanding that require liability recognition.
ARE frequently issues parent guarantees of commitments resulting from the ongoing activities of its
subsidiary companies. The guarantees generally result from subsidiary commodity purchase obligations,
subsidiary lease commitments and subsidiary banking transactions. The nature of such items is to guarantee the
performance of the subsidiary companies in meeting their respective underlying obligations. Except for operating
lease commitments and letters of credit, all such underlying obligations are recorded on the books of the
subsidiary companies and are included in the consolidated financial statements included herein. Therefore, no
such obligation is recorded again on the books of the parent. The parent would only be called upon to perform
under the guarantee in the event of a payment default by the applicable subsidiary company. In satisfying such
obligations, the parent would first look to the assets of the defaulting subsidiary company.
As of December 31, 2010, parental guaranteed obligations are approximately as follows (in thousands):

Lease payments
Equipment residual values
Commodity purchases
Letters of credit

2011
$
186
181
49,411
23,912
$ 73,690

2012
$

$

56
72
128

2013
$

$

47

47
216
263

2014

$

-

Thereafter
$
-

Total
289
469
49,411
23,912
$ 74,081

(8) Segment Reporting
The Company is engaged in the business of crude oil, natural gas and petroleum products marketing as
well as tank truck transportation of liquid chemicals, and oil and gas exploration and production. Information
concerning the Company's various business activities is summarized as follows (in thousands):

Revenues
Year ended December 31, 2010Marketing
- Crude oil
- Natural gas
- Refined products
Marketing Total
Transportation
Oil and gas

$

$
Year ended December 31, 2009Marketing
- Crude oil
- Natural gas
- Refined products
Marketing Total
Transportation
Oil and gas

$

$
Year ended December 31, 2008Marketing
- Crude oil
- Natural gas
- Refined products
Marketing Total
Transportation
Oil and gas

$

$

2,005,301
10,592
128,189
2,144,082
56,867
11,021
2,211,970

1,770,600
14,232
104,751
1,889,583
44,895
8,650
1,943,128

3,849,531
11,586
213,560
4,074,677
67,747
17,248
4,159,672

Segment
Operating
Earnings (loss)

Depreciation
Depletion and
Amortization

Property and
Equipment
Additions

$

$

2,320
44
503
2,867
4,288
4,662
11,817

$

1,997
166
533
2,696
3,970
3,654
10,320

$

2,039
163
565
2,767
3,843
6,763
13,373

$

$

$

$

$

$

13,530
3,073
121
16,724
6,623
(1,757)
21,590

15,404
2,749
(666)
17,487
2,128
(3,625)
15,990

(4,545)
2,247
(406)
(2,704)
4,245
(3,348)
(1,807)

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

6,051
115
146
6,312
4,410
11,699
22,421

1,947
177
2,124
7,524
12,742
22,390

4,715
12
114
4,841
809
12,038
17,688

Intersegment sales are insignificant and all sales by the Company occurred in the United States.
Segment operating earnings reflect revenues net of operating costs and depreciation, depletion and
amortization and are reconciled to earnings from continuing operations before income taxes, as follows (in
thousands):

Segment operating earnings (loss)
- General and administrative expenses
Operating earnings
- Interest income
- Interest expense
Earnings (loss) before income taxes

Years Ended December 31,
2010
2009
2008
$ 21,590
$ 15,990
$ (1,807)
(9,044)
(9,589)
(9,667)
12,546
6,401
(11,474)
191
125
1,103
(36)
(25)
(187)
$ 12,701
$ 6,501
$ (10,558)
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Identifiable assets by industry segment are as follows (in thousands):
Years Ended December 31,
2010
2009
Marketing
- Crude oil
- Natural gas
- Refined products
Marketing Total
Transportation
Oil and gas
Other

$ 184,299
19,948
11,594
215,841
17,378
32,563
35,523
$ 301,305

$ 130,840
40,715
10,133
181,688
16,078
26,050
25,585
$ 249,401

Other identifiable assets are primarily corporate cash, corporate accounts receivable, and properties not
identified with any specific segment of the Company's business. Accounting policies for transactions between
reportable segments are consistent with applicable accounting policies as disclosed herein.
(9) Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited) Selected quarterly financial data and earnings per share of the Company are presented below for the years
ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 (in thousands, except per share data):

Revenues
2010 March 31
June 30
September 30
December 31
Total

$ 533,785
547,141
502,455
628,589
$2,211,970

2009 March 31
June 30
September 30
December 31
Total

$ 340,141
515,070
576,299
511,618
$1,943,128

Net Earnings (loss)
Per
Amount
Share

Operating
Earnings (loss)
$

$

$

$

2,575
2,656
4,021
3,294
12,546

$

2,800
4,328
1,146
(1,873)
6,401

$

$

$

Dividends
Amount

1,794
1,685
2,762
2,390
8,631

$

.43
.39
.66
.57
$ 2.05

$

1,870
2,734
639
(1,094)
4,149

$

$

.44
.65
.15
(.26)
$ .98

Per
Share

$

$

2,277
2,277

$

2,109
2,109

$

$

$

.54
.54

.50
.50

Note: The fourth quarter 2009 operating loss resulted from $833,000 of oil and gas producing property impairments and a $550,000 bad
debt provision within the Company’s refined products segment. The full year 2010 and 2009 includes marketing segment pre-tax
inventory liquidation gains totaling $2,272,000 and $5,780,000, respectively.

The above unaudited interim financial data reflect all adjustments that are in the opinion of management
necessary to a fair statement of the results for the period presented. All such adjustments are of a normal
recurring nature.
(10) Subsequent Event and Property Held for Sale
In January 2011, the Company completed the sale of its interest in certain producing oil and gas
properties. Proceeds from the sale totaled $6.2 million and the Company will record a pre-tax gain from this
transaction of approximately $2.7 million during the first quarter of 2011. Such properties sold are included
under the caption “Oil and Gas Property Held for Sale” in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheet.
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(11) Oil and Gas Producing Activities (Unaudited)
The Company’s oil and gas exploration and production activities are conducted in Texas and the south
central region of the United States, primarily along the Gulf Coast of Texas and Louisiana.
Oil and Gas Producing Activities Total costs incurred in oil and gas exploration and development activities, all incurred within the United
States, were as follows (in thousands):
Years Ended December 31,
2010
2009
2008
Property acquisition costs
Unproved
$ 2,295 $ 6,199
$ 3,139
Proved
Exploration costs
3,818
6,030
Expensed
3,233
1,035
Capitalized
178
2,341
Development costs
6,233
3,466
Total costs incurred
$ 11,761 $ 13,393
$ 12,813
The aggregate capitalized costs relative to oil and gas producing activities are as follows (in thousands):
December 31,
2010
2009
$ 12,250
$ 9,385
64,458
69,011
81,261
73,843

Unproved oil and gas properties
Proved oil and gas properties
Accumulated depreciation, depletion
and amortization
Net capitalized cost

(51,857)
$ 29,404

(49,797)
$ 24,046

Estimated Oil and Natural Gas Reserves The following information regarding estimates of the Company's proved oil and gas reserves, all located
in Texas and the south central region of the United States, is based on reports prepared on behalf of the Company
by its independent petroleum engineers. Because oil and gas reserve estimates are inherently imprecise and
require extensive judgments of reservoir engineering data, they are generally less precise than estimates made in
conjunction with financial disclosures. The revisions of previous estimates as reflected in the table below result
from changes in commodity pricing assumptions and from more precise engineering calculations based upon
additional production histories and price changes.
Proved developed and undeveloped reserves are presented as follows (in thousands):
Years Ended December 31,
2010
2009
2008
Natural
Natural
Natural
Gas
Oil
Gas
Oil
Gas
Oil
(Mcf’s)
(Bbls.)
(Mcf’s)
(Bbls.)
(Mcf’s) (Bbls.)
Total proved reservesBeginning of year
Revisions of previous estimates
Oil and gas reserves sold
Extensions, discoveries and
Other reserve additions
Production
End of year

7,248
(832)
-

242
-

6,443
(129)
-

230
(4)
-

7,068
(1,350)
-

297
(83)
-

2,743
(1,365)
7,794

79
(54)
267

2,238
(1,304)
7,248

66
(50)
242

1,968
(1,243)
6,443

67
(51)
230
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The components of proved oil and gas reserves for the three years ended December 31, 2010 is presented
below. All reserves are in the United States (in thousands):

Proved developed reserves
Proved undeveloped reserves
Total proved reserves

Years Ended December 31,
2010
2009
2008
Natural
Natural
Natural
Gas
Oil
Gas
Oil
Gas
Oil
(Mcf’s)
(Bbls.)
(Mcf’s)
(Bbls.)
(Mcf’s) (Bbls.)
7,134
240
6,295
242
6,443
230
660
27
953
7,794
267
7,248
242
6,443
230

Proved undeveloped reserves originated in 2009 when active drilling efforts during such period identified
and delineated additional reserve average. During 2010 additional drilling efforts converted such undeveloped
reserves to the developed category.
The Company has developed internal policies and controls for estimating and recording oil and gas
reserve data. The estimation and recording of proved reserves is required to be in compliance with SEC definitions
and guidance. The Company assigns responsibility for compliance in reserve bookings to the office of President of
the Company’s AREC subsidiary. No portion of this individual’s compensation is directly dependent on the
quantity of reserves booked. Reserve estimates are required to be made by qualified reserve estimators, as defined
by Society of Petroleum Engineers’ Standards.
The Company employs the third party petroleum consultant, Ryder Scott Company, to prepare its oil and
gas reserve data estimates as of December 31 2010, 2009 and 2008. The firm of Ryder Scott is well recognized
within the industry for more than 50 years. As prescribed by the SEC, such proved reserves were estimated using
12-month average oil and gas prices, based on the first-day-of-the-month price for each month in the period, and
year-end production and development costs for the December 31, 2010 and 2009’s estimate, without escalation.
At December 31, 2008 and in previous years, such proved reserves were estimated using oil and gas prices and
production and development costs as of December 31 of each such year, without escalation.
The process of estimating oil and gas reserves is complex and requires significant judgment.
Uncertainties are inherent in estimating quantities of proved reserves, including many factors beyond the
estimator’s control. Reserve engineering is a subjective process of estimating subsurface accumulations of oil and
gas that cannot be measured in an exact manner, and the accuracy of any reserve estimate is a function of the
quality of available data and the interpretation thereof. As a result, estimates by different engineers often vary,
sometimes significantly. In addition, physical factors such as the results of drilling, testing and production
subsequent to the date of an estimate, as well as economic factors such as changes in product prices, may justify
revision of such estimates. Accordingly, oil and gas quantities ultimately recovered will vary from reserve
estimates.
Standardized Measure of Discounted Future Net Cash Flows from Oil and Gas Operations and Changes
Therein The standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows was determined based on the economic
conditions in effect at the end of the years presented, except in those instances where fixed and determinable gas
price escalations are included in contracts. The disclosures below do not purport to present the fair market value
of the Company's oil and gas reserves. An estimate of the fair market value would also take into account, among
other things, the recovery of reserves in excess of proved reserves, anticipated future changes in prices and costs,
a discount factor more representative of the time value of money and risks inherent in reserve estimates. The
standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows is presented as follows (in thousands):
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Years Ended December 31,
2010
2009
2008
$ 61,311
$ 43,498
$ 45,081

Future gross revenues
Future costs Lease operating expenses
Development costs
Future net cash flows before income taxes
Discount at 10% per annum
Discounted future net cash flows
before income taxes
Future income taxes, net of discount at
10% per annum
Standardized measure of discounted
future net cash flows

$

(17,288)
(1,596)
42,427
(16,777)

(15,969)
(2,495)
25,034
(10,719)

(14,080)
(816)
30,185
(12,421)

25,650

14,315

17,764

(8,978)

(5,010)

(6,217)

16,672

$

9,305

$ 11,547

The reserve estimates provided at December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 are based on aggregate prices of
$76.14, $58.43 and $37.87 per barrel for crude oil and $5.26, $4.05 and $5.65 per mcf for natural gas,
respectively. For 2010 and 2009, such prices were based on the unweighted arithmetic average of the prices in
effect on the first day of the month for each month of the respective twelve month periods as required by
Securities & Exchange Commission regulations. For 2008, the price reflects the market price on December 31,
2008.
The affect of income taxes and discounting on the standardized measure of discounted future net cash
flows is presented as follows (in thousands):
Years ended December 31,
2010
2009
$ 42,427
$ 25,034
$
(8,762)
(14,849)
27,578
16,272
(10,906)
(6,967)

Future net cash flows before income taxes
Future income taxes
Future net cash flows
Discount at 10% per annum
Standardized measure of discounted
future net cash flows

$ 16,672

$

9,305

2008
30,185
(10,565)
19,620
(8,073)

$ 11,547

The principal sources of changes in the standardized measure of discounted future net flows are as
follows (in thousands):

Beginning of year
Sale of oil and gas reserves
Net change in prices and production costs
New field discoveries and extensions, net of future
production costs
Sales of oil and gas produced, net of production costs
Net change due to revisions in quantity estimates
Accretion of discount
Production rate changes and other
Net change in income taxes
End of year
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Years Ended December 31,
2010
2009
2008
$ 9,305
$ 11,547
$ 19,590
9,435
(4,890)
(10,041)
9,068
(7,084)
(1,369)
1,072
213
(3,968)
$ 16,672

$

3,471
(5,114)
(347)
1,242
2,189
1,207
9,305

11,571
(12,523)
(6,293)
2,234
2,679
4,330
$ 11,547

Results of Operations for Oil and Gas Producing Activities The results of oil and gas producing activities, excluding corporate overhead and interest costs, are as
follows (in thousands):

Revenues
Costs and expenses Production
Producing property impairment
Exploration
Depreciation, depletion and amortization
Operating income (loss) before income taxes
Income tax (expense) benefit
Operating income (loss)
Item 9.

Years Ended December 31,
2010
2009
2008
$ 11,021
$ 8,650
$ 17,248
(3,937)
(946)
(3,233)
(4,662)
(1,757)
615
$ (1,142)

(3,536)
(1,350)
(3,735)
(3,654)
(3,625)
1,268
$ (2,357)

(4,725)
(3,078)
(6,030)
(6,763)
(3,348)
1,172
$ (2,176)

CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.

Item 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Disclosure Controls and Procedures
The Company maintains “disclosure controls and procedures” (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) and 15d15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”) that are designed to ensure
that information required to be disclosed in the reports that the Company files or submits under the Exchange Act
are recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and
Exchange Commission’s rules and forms and is accumulated and communicated to management, including the
Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely discussions
regarding required disclosure. As of the end of the period covered by this annual report, an evaluation was carried
out under the supervision and with the participation of the Company’s management, including the Company’s
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of the
Company’s disclosure controls and procedures. Based upon that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and the
Chief Financial Officer concluded the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by
this report are effective to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the Company’s Exchange Act filings
is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the periods specified in the Securities and Exchange
Commission’s rules and forms.
Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act. The Company’s internal control over financial
reporting is a process designed under the supervision of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and the Chief
Financial Officer to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with policies
and procedures may deteriorate.
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Management, including the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, assessed the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2010. In making this
assessment, management used the criteria described in Internal Control – Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). Based on this assessment,
management, including the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, concluded that
internal control over financial reporting was effective at a reasonable assurance level as of December 31, 2010.
This annual report does not include an attestation report of the Company’s independent registered public
accounting firm regarding internal control over financial reporting. This management’s report was not subject to
attestation by an independent registered public accounting firm pursuant to the rules of the Securities and
Exchange Commission that permit the Company to provide only management’s report in this annual report.
This Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting shall not be deemed “filed” for
purposes of Section 18 of the Exchange Act or incorporated by reference in any filing under the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, or the Exchange Act, except as shall be expressly set forth by specific reference in such a
filing.
Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting.
There have not been any changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting during the
fiscal quarter ended December 31, 2010 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect,
the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.
Item 9B. OTHER
None.
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PART III
Item 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The information concerning directors, corporate governance and executive officers of the Company is
incorporated by reference from the Company’s definitive Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of
Shareholders to be held May 18, 2011, under the heading “Election of Directors” and “Executive Officers”,
respectively, to be filed with the Commission not later than 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by
this Form 10-K.
Item 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
The information required by Item 11 is incorporated by reference from the Company’s definitive Proxy
Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held May 18, 2011, under the heading “Executive
Compensation” to be filed with the Commission not later than 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by
this Form 10-K.
Item 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS
The information required by Item 12 is incorporated by reference from the Company’s definitive Proxy
Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held May 18, 2011, under the heading “Voting Securities
and Principal Holders Thereof” to be filed with the Commission not later than 120 days after the end of the fiscal
year covered by this Form 10-K.
Item 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS,
INDEPENDENCE

RELATED

PARTY

TRANSACTIONS

AND

DIRECTOR

The information required by Item 13 is incorporated by reference from the Company’s definitive Proxy
Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held May 18, 2011, under the headings “Transactions
with Related Parties” and “Director Independence” to be filed with the Commission not later than 120 days after
the end of the fiscal year covered by this Form 10-K.
Item 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES
The information required by Item 14 is incorporated by reference from the Company’s definitive Proxy
Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held May 18, 2011, under the heading “Principal
Accounting Fees and Services” to be filed with the Commission not later than 120 days after the end of the fiscal
year covered by this Form 10-K.
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PART IV

Item 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(a)

The following documents are filed as a part of this Form 10-K:
1.

Financial Statements
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2010 and 2009
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Years Ended
December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity for the Years Ended
December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended
December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2. All financial schedules have been omitted because they are not applicable or the required
information is shown in the financial statements or notes thereto.
3. Exhibits required to be filed
3(a)

- Certificate of Incorporation of the Company, as amended. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
3(a) filed with the Annual Report on Form 10-K (-File No. 1-7908) of the Company for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 1987)

3(b)

- Bylaws of the Company, as amended (Incorporated by reference to Exhibits 3.2 and 3.2.1 of
Amendment No. 1 to the Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on October 29, 1973 - File No. 2-48144)

3(c)

- Amendment to the Bylaws of the Company to add an Article VII, Section 8. Indemnification of
Directors, Officers, Employees and Agents (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3(c) of the Annual
Report on Form 10-K (-File No. 1-7908) of the Company for the fiscal year ended December 31,
1986)

3(d)

- Adams Resources & Energy, Inc. and Subsidiaries’ Code of Ethics (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3(d) of the Annual Report on Form 10-K (-File No. 1-7908) of the Company for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2002)

4(a)

- Specimen common stock Certificate (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(a) of the Annual
Report on Form 10-K of the Company (-File No. 1-7908) for the fiscal year ended December 31,
1991)
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4(b)

- Credit and Security Agreement between Gulfmark Energy, Inc., Adams Resources Marketing,
Ltd and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association dated August 27, 2009 (Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4(b) of the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2009.

10.1(a)

- Employment agreement of Frank T. Webster, President, dated May 4, 2004 by and between
Adams Resources & Energy, Inc. and Frank T. Webster (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1
to the Company’s quarterly report on Form 10-Q filed on November 11, 2004)

10.1(b)*

- Amendment to Employment Agreement of Frank T. Webster, President, dated December 6, 2010
by and between Adams Resources & Energy, Inc. and Frank T. Webster.

10.1(c)

- Change in control/severance agreement dated July 25, 2008 by and between Adams Resources &
Energy, Inc. and Richard B. Abshire (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s
current report on Form 8-K filed on July 25, 2008)

21*

- Subsidiaries of the Registrant

23.1*

- Consent of Ryder Scott Company

31.1*

- Adams Resources & Energy, Inc. Certification Pursuant to 17 CFR 13a-14 (a)/15d-14(a), As
adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2*

- Adams Resources & Energy, Inc. Certification Pursuant to 17 CFR 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a), as
adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1*

- Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2*

- Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

99.1*

- Ryder Scott Company Report

______________________________
* - Filed herewith
Copies of all agreements defining the rights of holders of long-term debt of the Company and its
subsidiaries, which agreements authorize amounts not in excess of 10% of the total consolidated assets of the
Company, are not filed herewith but will be furnished to the Commission upon request.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
ADAMS RESOURCES & ENERGY, INC.
(Registrant)

By /s/Richard B. Abshire
Richard B. Abshire,
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

By /s/ K. S. Adams, Jr.
K. S. Adams, Jr.,
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer

Date: March 21, 2011
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by
the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the date indicated.

By /s/ Frank T. Webster
Frank T. Webster, Director

By /s/ E. C. Reinauer, Jr.
E. C. Reinauer, Jr., Director

By /s/ Larry E. Bell
Larry E. Bell, Director

By /s/ E. Jack Webster, Jr.
E. Jack Webster, Jr., Director
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EXHIBIT INDEX
Exhibit
Number

Description

3(a)

- Certificate of Incorporation of the Company, as amended. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3(a) filed with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 1987)

3(b)

- Bylaws of the Company, as amended (Incorporated by reference to Exhibits 3.2 and 3.2.1
of Amendment No. 1 to the Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on October 29, 1973 – File No. 2-48144)

3(c)

- Amendment to the Bylaws of the Company to add an Article VII, Section 8.
Indemnification of Directors, Officers, Employees and Agents (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3(c) of the Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 1986)

3(d)

- Adams Resources & Energy, Inc. and Subsidiaries’ Code of Ethics (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3(d) of the Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2002)

4(a)

- Specimen common stock Certificate (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(a) of the
Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1991)

4(b)

- Credit and Security Agreement between Gulfmark Energy, Inc., Adams Resources
Marketing, Ltd and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association dated August 27, 2010
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(b) of the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period
ended September 31, 2010

10.1(a)

- Employment agreement of Frank T. Webster, President, dated May 4, 2004 by and between
Adams Resources & Energy, Inc. and Frank T. Webster (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.1 to the Company’s quarterly report on Form 10-Q filed on November 11, 2004)

10.1(b)*

- Amendment to Employment Agreement of Frank T. Webster, President, dated December 6,
2010 by and between Adams Resources & Energy, Inc. and Frank T. Webster.

10.1(c)

- Change in control/severance agreement dated July 25, 2008 by and between Adams
Resources & Energy, Inc. and Richard B. Abshire (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
the Company’s current report on Form 8-K filed on July 25, 2008)

21*

-

Subsidiaries of the Registrant

23.1*

-

Consent of Ryder Scott Company

31.1*

- Certification Pursuant to 17 CFR 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a), As Adopted Pursuant to Section 302
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2*

- Certification Pursuant to 17 CFR 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a), As Adopted Pursuant to Section 302
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1*

- Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, As Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2*

- Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, As Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
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99.1*

-

Ryder Scott Company Report

______________________________
* - Filed herewith
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EXHIBIT 10.1(b)

EIGHTH AMENDMENT TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT
Whereas, heretofore, under date of May 12, 2004, Adams Resources & Energy, Inc. (“ARE”)
and Frank T. “Chip” Webster (“Webster”) entered into that certain Employment Agreement bearing that
date, which Employment Agreement provided for the employment of Webster by ARE subject to the
terms and conditions as set forth; and

Whereas, said Employment Agreement was amended by that certain Amendment to Employment
Agreement (“First Amendment”), dated May 18, 2005 by and between ARE and Webster.

Whereas, said Employment Agreement was amended by that certain Second Amendment to
Employment Agreement (“Second Amendment”) dated May 19, 2006, by and between ARE and
Webster.

Whereas, said Employment Agreement was amended by that certain Third Amendment to
Employment Agreement (“Third Amendment”) dated March 1, 2007, by and between ARE and
Webster.
Whereas, said Employment Agreement was amended by that certain Fourth Amendment to
Employment Agreement (“Fourth Amendment”) dated December 17, 2007, by and between ARE and
Webster.
Whereas, said Employment Agreement was amended by that certain Fifth Amendment to
Employment Agreement (“Fifth Amendment”) dated September 20, 2008, by and between ARE and
Webster.
Whereas, said Employment Agreement was amended by that certain Sixth Amendment to
Employment Agreement (“Sixth Amendment”) dated December 23, 2008, by and between ARE and
Webster.
Whereas, said Employment Agreement was amended by that certain Seventh Amendment to
Employment Agreement (“Seventh Amendment”) dated December 8, 2009, by and between ARE and
Webster.
Whereas, the Employment Agreement, the First Amendment, the Second Amendment, the Third
Amendment, the Fourth Amendment, the Fifth Amendment, the Sixth Amendment, and the Seventh
Amendment (collectively “Agreement”) are now in full force and effect and ARE and Webster mutually
desire to hereby modify and amend said Agreement to the extent and in the manner hereinafter
specified.
Now, therefore ARE and Webster do hereby mutually agree that Section 1.(a) of the Agreement
be and the same is hereby amended to hereafter be and read as follows:
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Section 1. (a) ARE hereby employs Webster as its President and Chief Operating Officer and
Webster hereby accepts such employment for the time period beginning May 14, 2004, and ending May
13, 2014, subject to earlier termination as hereinafter set forth (the "Term"). Anything herein contained
to the contrary notwithstanding, ARE shall have the unilateral right to terminate Webster's employment
at any time during the Term with or without cause.
ARE and Webster do hereby mutually agree that Section 5. (a) of the Agreement be and the
same hereby is amended by adding the following sentence to the end of Section 5(a):
In the event the term of this Agreement is extended beyond May 13, 2013, the base salary for
the year May 14, 2013 to May 13, 2014, shall be the base salary which was paid to Webster in the
final year of the term as set out in the Agreement.
Said Agreement, as hereby amended, shall continue in full force and effect subject to all of its
terms and provisions and ARE and Webster do hereby agree and declare that the Agreement as
amended, is binding upon each party and is a valid and subsisting Agreement.

Executed the _6th_ day of __December__, 2010.
ADAMS RESOURCES & ENERGY, INC.

By_/s/K. S. Adams, Jr.__________________
K. S. Adams, Jr.
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer
_/s/Frank T. “Chip” Webster_________
Frank T. "Chip" Webster
President and Chief Operating Officer
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EXHIBIT 21
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT
The following is a list of all subsidiary corporations of the registrant. All subsidiaries are wholly-owned
by the Company, except that Buckley Mining Corporation and Plastics Universal Corporation are wholly-owned
subsidiaries of Ada Mining Corporation. The Company's consolidated financial statements include the accounts
of all subsidiaries.
Subsidiary

Place of Incorporation

Adams Resources Exploration Corporation
Kirbyville Marketing Co., Inc.
Service Transport Company
Bayou City Pipelines, Inc.
Ada Crude Oil Company
Ada Mining Corporation
Classic Coal Corporation
Plastics Universal Corporation
CJC Leasing, Inc.
Buckley Mining Corporation
Gulfmark Energy, Inc.
Ada Resources, Inc.
Adams Resources Marketing, Ltd.
Adams Resources Marketing GP, Inc.
Adams Resources Marketing II, Inc.
Gulfmark Energy Marketing, Inc.

Delaware
Texas
Texas
Texas
Texas
Texas
Delaware
Kentucky
Kentucky
Kentucky
Texas
Texas
Texas
Texas
Nevada
Nevada
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Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF RYDER SCOTT COMPANY

The undersigned hereby consents to the references to our firm in the form and context in which they
appear in the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Adams Resources & Energy, Inc. for the year ended December 31,
2010 (the “Annual Report”). We hereby further consent to the inclusion in the Annual Report of our report
entitled “Adams Resources Exploration Corporation – Estimated Future Reserves and Income Attributable to
Certain Leasehold Interests – SEC Parameters – As of December 31, 2010” and to the inclusion of our report
dated February 10, 2011 as an exhibit to the Annual Report.

/s/ Ryder Scott Company, L.P.
RYDER SCOTT COMPANY, L.P.
TBPE Firm Registration No. F-1580

Houston, Texas
March 21, 2011

64

Exhibit 31.1
ADAMS RESOURCES & ENERGY, INC.
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
17 CFR 240.13a-14(a)/15d-14(a)
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, K. S. Adams, Jr. certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Adams Resources & Energy, Inc. (the “registrant”);

2.

Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were
made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for,
the periods presented in this annual report;

4.

The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in exchange act rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and we have:
(a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this annual report is being prepared;
(b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles;
(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report
our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the
period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
(d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f), that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter
(the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

5.

The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):
(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and
(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant's internal controls.

Date: March 21, 2011

/s/ K. S. Adams, Jr.
K. S. Adams, Jr.
Chief Executive Officer
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Exhibit 31.2
ADAMS RESOURCES & ENERGY, INC.
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
17 CFR 240.13a-14(a)/15d-14(a)
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, Richard B. Abshire, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Adams Resources & Energy, Inc. (the “registrant”);

2.

Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were
made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for,
the periods presented in this annual report;

4.

The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in exchange act rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and we have:, as for the registrant and we have:
(a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this annual report is being prepared;
(b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles;
(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure and procedures controls and presented in this report
our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period
covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
(d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f), that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter
(the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

5.

The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
(a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report
financial information; and
(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant
role in the registrant's internal controls.

Date: March 21, 2011
/s/ Richard B. Abshire
Richard B. Abshire
Chief Financial Officer
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Exhibit 32.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Adams Resources & Energy, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2010 (the “Report”), I, K. S. Adams, Jr., Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant to 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to the
best of my knowledge:
(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934; and
(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of the Company.

/s/ K. S. Adams, Jr.
K. S. Adams, Jr.
Chief Executive Officer
March 21, 2011

This Certification is being furnished solely to accompany the Report pursuant to 18 U.S.C.§1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, and shall not be deemed “filed” by the Company for
purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and shall not be incorporated by
reference into any filing of the Company under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, whether made before or after the date of this Report, irrespective of any
general incorporation language contained in such filing.
A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906, or other documents authenticating,
acknowledging, or otherwise adopting the signature that appears in typed form within the electronic version of
this written statement required by Section 906, has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the
Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.

67

Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
In connection with the Annual Report of Adams Resources & Energy, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2010 (the “Report”), I, Richard B. Abshire, Chief Financial Officer of the Company,
certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant to 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to the
best of my knowledge:
(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) of 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934; and
(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of the Company.

/s/ Richard B. Abshire
Richard B. Abshire
Chief Financial Officer
March 21, 2011

This Certification is being furnished solely to accompany the Report pursuant to 18 U.S.C.§1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, and shall not be deemed “filed” by the Company for
purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and shall not be incorporated by
reference into any filing of the Company under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, whether made before or after the date of this Report, irrespective of any
general incorporation language contained in such filing.
A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906, or other documents authenticating,
acknowledging, or otherwise adopting the signature that appears in typed form within the electronic version of
this written statement required by Section 906, has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the
Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.
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EXHIBIT 99.1

ADAMS RESOURCES EXPLORATION CORPORATION

Estimated
Future Reserves and Income
Attributable to Certain
Leasehold and Royalty Interests

SEC Parameters
As of
December 31, 2010

\s\ Fred W. Ziehe
Fred W. Ziehe, P.E.
TBPE License No. 63630
Managing Senior Vice President
RYDER SCOTT COMPANY, L.P.
TBPE Firm Registration No. F-1580

69

[SEAL]

TBPE REGISTERED ENGINEERING FIRM F-1580
1100 LOUISIANA SUITE 3800 HOUSTON, TEXAS 77002-5235
TELEPHONE (713) 651-9191 FAX (713) 651-0849

February 10, 2011
Adams Resources Exploration Corporation
4400 Post Oak Parkway
Houston, Texas 77027
Gentlemen:
At your request, Ryder Scott Company (Ryder Scott) has prepared an estimate of the proved reserves, future
production, and income attributable to certain leasehold and royalty interests of Adams Resources Exploration
Corporation (Adams) as of December 31, 2010. The subject properties are located in the states of Alabama, Arkansas,
Kansas, Louisiana, Montana, Oklahoma, Texas and Wyoming and in the federal waters offshore Louisiana. The
reserves and income data were estimated based on the definitions and disclosure guidelines of the United States
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) contained in Title 17, Code of Federal Regulations, Modernization of Oil
and Gas Reporting, Final Rule released January 14, 2009 in the Federal Register (SEC regulations). Our third party
study, completed on February 10, 2011 and presented herein, was prepared for public disclosure by Adams in filings
made with the SEC in accordance with the disclosure requirements set forth in the SEC regulations. The properties
reviewed by Ryder Scott represent 100 percent of the total net proved liquid hydrocarbon and gas reserves of Adams.
The estimated reserves and future net income amounts presented in this report, as of December 31, 2010, are
related to hydrocarbon prices. The hydrocarbon prices used in the preparation of this report are based on the average
prices during the 12-month period prior to the ending date of the period covered in this report, determined as the
unweighted arithmetic averages of the prices in effect on the first-day-of-the-month for each month within such period,
unless prices were defined by contractual arrangements, as required by the SEC regulations. Actual future prices may
vary significantly from the prices required by SEC regulations; therefore, volumes of reserves actually recovered and
the amounts of income actually received may differ significantly from the estimated quantities presented in this report.
The results of this study are summarized below.
SEC PARAMETERS
Estimated Net Reserves and Income Data
Certain Leasehold and Royalty Interests of
Adams Resources Exploration Corporation
As of December 31, 2010
Proved
Developed
Producing
Non-Producing
Undeveloped
Net Remaining Reserves
Oil/Condensate – MBls
Plant Products – MBls
Gas – MMCF
MBOE

187.0
0.4
5,859.0
1,163.9

49.5
3.0
1,274.0
264.9

Income Data – M$
Future Gross Revenue
Deductions
Future Net Income (FNI)

$ 42,110.0
13,006.6
$ 29,103.4

$ 10,748.7
1,201.8
$ 9,546.9

$

Discounted FNI @ 10%

$ 19,020.8

$

600, 1015 4TH STREET, S.W.
621 17TH STREET, SUITE 1550

4,215.7

CALGARY, ALBERTA T2R 1J4
DENVER, COLORADO 80293-1501

Total
Proved

26.6
0.0
661.0
136.7

263.1
3.4
7,794.0
1,565.5

$

5,168.1
1,391.4
3,776.7

$ 58,026.8
15,599.8
$ 42,427.0

$

2,413.4

$ 25,649.9

TEL (403) 262-2799
TEL (303) 623-9147

FAX (403) 262-2790
FAX (303) 623-4258

Adams Resources Exploration Corporation
February 10, 2011
Page 2

Liquid hydrocarbons are expressed in thousands of standard 42 gallon barrels (MBbls). All gas volumes are
reported on an “as sold basis” expressed in millions of cubic feet (MMCF) at the official temperature and pressure
bases of the areas in which the gas reserves are located. The net remaining reserves are also shown herein on an
equivalent unit basis wherein natural gas is converted to oil equivalent using a factor of 6,000 cubic feet of natural gas
per one barrel of oil equivalent. MBOE means thousands of barrels of oil equivalent. In this report, the revenues,
deductions, and income data are expressed as thousands of U.S. dollars (M$).
The estimates of the reserves, future production, and income attributable to properties in this report were
prepared using the economic software package AriesTM System Petroleum Economic Evaluation Software, a
copyrighted program of Halliburton. The program was used solely at the request of Adams. Ryder Scott has found this
program to be generally acceptable, but notes that certain summaries and calculations may vary due to rounding and
may not exactly match the sum of the properties being summarized. Furthermore, one line economic summaries may
vary slightly from the more detailed cash flow projections of the same properties, also due to rounding. The rounding
differences are not material.
The future gross revenue is after the deduction of production taxes. The deductions incorporate the normal
direct costs of operating the wells, ad valorem taxes, recompletion costs, development costs, and certain abandonment
costs net of salvage. The future net income is before the deduction of state and federal income taxes and general
administrative overhead, and has not been adjusted for outstanding loans that may exist, nor does it include any
adjustment for cash on hand or undistributed income. Gas reserves account for approximately 67 percent and liquid
hydrocarbon reserves account for the remaining 33 percent of total future gross revenue from proved reserves.
The discounted future net income shown above was calculated using a discount rate of 10 percent per annum
compounded monthly. Future net income was discounted at four other discount rates which were also compounded
monthly. These results are shown in summary form as follows.

Discount Rate
Percent
2.5
5.0
15.0
20.0

Discounted Future Net Income – M$
As of December 31, 2010
Total
Proved
$ 35,576.1
$ 31,150.5
$ 22,250.8
$ 19,873.6

The results shown above are presented for your information and should not be construed as our estimate of fair
market value.
Reserves Included in This Report
The proved reserves included herein conform to the definition as set forth in the Securities and Exchange
Commission’s Regulations Part 210.4-10(a). An abridged version of the SEC reserves definitions from 210.4-10(a)
entitled “Petroleum Reserves Definitions” is included as an attachment to this report.
The various proved reserve status categories are defined under the attachment entitled “Petroleum Reserves
Definitions” in this report. The proved developed non-producing reserves included herein consist of the shut-in and
behind pipe categories.
No attempt was made to quantify or otherwise account for any accumulated gas production imbalances that
may exist. The proved gas volumes included herein do not attribute gas consumed in operations as reserves.

RYDER SCOTT COMPANY

PETROLEUM CONSULTANTS

Adams Resources Exploration Corporation
February 10, 2011
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Reserves are “estimated remaining quantities of oil and gas and related substances anticipated to be
economically producible, as of a given date, by application of development projects to known accumulations.” All
reserve estimates involve an assessment of the uncertainty relating the likelihood that the actual remaining quantities
recovered will be greater or less than the estimated quantities determined as of the date the estimate is made. The
uncertainty depends chiefly on the amount of reliable geologic and engineering data available at the time of the
estimate and the interpretation of these data. The relative degree of uncertainty may be conveyed by placing reserves
into one of two principal classifications, either proved or unproved. Unproved reserves are less certain to be recovered
than proved reserves, and may be further sub-classified as probable and possible reserves to denote progressively
increasing uncertainty in their recoverability. At Adams’ request, this report addresses only the proved reserves
attributable to the properties evaluated herein.
Proved oil and gas reserves are those quantities of oil and gas which, by analysis of geoscience and
engineering data, can be estimated with reasonable certainty to be economically producible from a given date forward.
The proved reserves included herein were estimated using deterministic methods. If deterministic methods are used,
the SEC has defined reasonable certainty for proved reserves as a “high degree of confidence that the quantities will be
recovered.”
Proved reserve estimates will generally be revised only as additional geologic or engineering data become
available or as economic conditions change. For proved reserves, the SEC states that “as changes due to increased
availability of geoscience (geological, geophysical, and geochemical), engineering, and economic data are made to the
estimated ultimate recovery (EUR) with time, reasonably certain EUR is much more likely to increase or remain
constant than to decrease.” Moreover, estimates of proved reserves may be revised as a result of future operations,
effects of regulation by governmental agencies or geopolitical or economic risks. Therefore, the proved reserves
included in this report are estimates only and should not be construed as being exact quantities, and if recovered, the
revenues therefrom, and the actual costs related thereto, could be more or less than the estimated amounts.
Adams’ operations may be subject to various levels of governmental controls and regulations. These controls
and regulations may include, but may not be limited to, matters relating to land tenure and leasing, the legal rights to
produce hydrocarbons, drilling and production practices, environmental protection, marketing and pricing policies,
royalties, various taxes and levies including income tax and are subject to change from time to time. Such changes in
governmental regulations and policies may cause volumes of proved reserves actually recovered and amounts of
proved income actually received to differ significantly from the estimated quantities.
The estimates of proved reserves presented herein were based upon a detailed study of the properties in which
Adams owns an interest; however, we have not made any field examination of the properties. No consideration was
given in this report to potential environmental liabilities that may exist nor were any costs included for potential
liabilities to restore and clean up damages, if any, caused by past operating practices.

Estimates of Reserves
The estimation of reserves involves two distinct determinations. The first determination results in the
estimation of the quantities of recoverable oil and gas and the second determination results in the estimation of the
uncertainty associated with those estimated quantities in accordance with the definitions set forth by the Securities and
Exchange Commission’s Regulations Part 210.4-10(a). The process of estimating the quantities of recoverable oil and
gas reserves relies on the use of certain generally accepted analytical procedures. These analytical procedures fall into
three broad categories or methods: (1) performance-based methods; (2) volumetric-based methods; and (3) analogy.
These methods may be used singularly or in combination by the reserve evaluator in the process of estimating the
quantities of reserves. Reserve evaluators must select the method or combination of methods which in their
professional judgment is most appropriate given the nature and amount of reliable geoscience and engineering data
available at the time of the estimate, the established or anticipated performance characteristics of the reservoir being
evaluated and the stage of development or producing maturity of the property.

RYDER SCOTT COMPANY

PETROLEUM CONSULTANTS

Adams Resources Exploration Corporation
February 10, 2011
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In many cases, the analysis of the available geoscience and engineering data and the subsequent interpretation
of this data may indicate a range of possible outcomes in an estimate, irrespective of the method selected by the
evaluator. When a range in the quantity of reserves is identified, the evaluator must determine the uncertainty
associated with the incremental quantities of the reserves. If the reserve quantities are estimated using the deterministic
incremental approach, the uncertainty for each discrete incremental quantity of the reserves is addressed by the reserve
category assigned by the evaluator. Therefore, it is the categorization of reserve quantities as proved, probable and/or
possible that addresses the inherent uncertainty in the estimated quantities reported. For proved reserves, uncertainty is
defined by the SEC as reasonable certainty wherein the “quantities actually recovered are much more likely than not to
be achieved.” The SEC states that “probable reserves are those additional reserves that are less certain to be recovered
than proved reserves but which, together with proved reserves, are as likely as not to be recovered.” The SEC states
that “possible reserves are those additional reserves that are less certain to be recovered than probable reserves and the
total quantities ultimately recovered from a project have a low probability of exceeding proved plus probable plus
possible reserves.” All quantities of reserves within the same reserve category must meet the SEC definitions as noted
above.
Estimates of reserves quantities and their associated reserve categories may be revised in the future as
additional geoscience or engineering data become available. Furthermore, estimates of reserves quantities and their
associated reserve categories may also be revised due to other factors such as changes in economic conditions, results
of future operations, effects of regulation by governmental agencies or geopolitical or economic risks as previously
noted herein.
The proved reserves for the properties included herein were estimated by performance methods, the volumetric
method, analogy, or a combination of methods. Almost all of the proved producing reserves attributable to producing
wells and/or reservoirs were estimated by performance methods. These performance methods include, but may not be
limited to, decline curve analysis, which utilized extrapolations of historical production and pressure data available
through November 2010 in those cases where such data were considered to be definitive. The data utilized in this
analysis were furnished to Ryder Scott by Adams or obtained from public data sources and were considered sufficient
for the purpose thereof. The remaining small portion of the proved producing reserves were estimated by analogy
where there were inadequate historical performance data to establish a definitive trend and where the use of production
performance data as a basis for the reserve estimates was considered to be inappropriate.
All of the proved developed non-producing and undeveloped reserves included herein were estimated by the
volumetric method, analogy, or a combination of methods. The volumetric analysis utilized pertinent well and seismic
data furnished to Ryder Scott by Adams or which we have obtained from public data sources that were available
through December 2010. The data utilized from the analogues as well as well and seismic data incorporated into our
volumetric analysis were considered sufficient for the purpose thereof.
It should be noted that the proved reserve volumes described herein consist of primary recovery, including
both pressure depletion and natural water drive mechanisms.
To estimate economically recoverable proved oil and gas reserves and related future net cash flows, we
consider many factors and assumptions including, but not limited to, the use of reservoir parameters derived from
geological, geophysical and engineering data that cannot be measured directly, economic criteria based on current costs
and SEC pricing requirements, and forecasts of future production rates. Under the SEC regulations 210.4-10(a)(22)(v)
and (26), proved reserves must be anticipated to be economically producible from a given date forward based on
existing economic conditions including the prices and costs at which economic producibility from a reservoir is to be
determined. While it may reasonably be anticipated that the future prices received for the sale of production and the
operating costs and other costs relating to such production may increase or decrease from those under existing
economic conditions, such changes were, in accordance with rules adopted by the SEC, omitted from consideration in
making this evaluation.
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Adams has informed us that they have furnished us all of the material accounts, records, geological and
engineering data, and reports and other data required for this investigation. In preparing our forecast of future proved
production and income, we have relied upon data furnished by Adams with respect to property interests owned,
production and well tests from examined wells, normal direct costs of operating the wells or leases, other costs such as
transportation and/or processing fees, ad valorem and production taxes, including the terms of certain severance tax
exemptions, recompletion and development costs, abandonment costs after salvage, product prices based on the SEC
regulations, adjustments or differentials to product prices, geological structural and isochore maps, well logs, core
analyses, and pressure measurements. Ryder Scott reviewed such factual data for its reasonableness; however, we have
not conducted an independent verification of the data furnished by Adams. We consider the factual data used in this
report appropriate and sufficient for the purpose of preparing the estimates of reserves and future net revenues herein.
In summary, we consider the assumptions, data, methods and analytical procedures used in this report
appropriate for the purpose hereof, and we have used all such methods and procedures that we consider necessary and
appropriate to prepare the estimates of reserves herein. The proved reserves included herein were determined in
conformance with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) Modernization of Oil and Gas
Reporting; Final Rule, including all references to Regulation S-X and Regulation S-K, referred to herein collectively as
the “SEC Regulations.” In our opinion, the proved reserves presented in this report comply with the definitions,
guidelines and disclosure requirements as required by the SEC regulations.
Future Production Rates
For wells currently on production, our forecasts of future production rates are based on historical performance
data. If no production decline trend has been established, future production rates were held constant, or adjusted for the
effects of curtailment where appropriate, until a decline in ability to produce was anticipated. An estimated rate of
decline was then applied to depletion of the reserves. If a decline trend has been established, this trend was used as the
basis for estimating future production rates.
Test data and other related information were used to estimate the anticipated initial production rates for those
wells or locations that are not currently producing. For reserves not yet on production, sales were estimated to
commence at an anticipated date furnished by Adams. Wells or locations that are not currently producing may start
producing earlier or later than anticipated in our estimates due to unforeseen factors causing a change in the timing to
initiate production. Such factors may include delays due to weather, the availability of rigs, the sequence of drilling,
completing and/or recompleting wells and/or constraints set by regulatory bodies.
The future production rates from wells currently on production or wells or locations that are not currently
producing may be more or less than estimated because of changes including, but not limited to, reservoir performance,
operating conditions related to surface facilities, compression and artificial lift, pipeline capacity and/or operating
conditions, producing market demand and/or allowables or other constraints set by regulatory bodies.
Hydrocarbon Prices
The hydrocarbon prices used herein are based on SEC price parameters using the average prices during the 12month period prior to the ending date of the period covered in this report, determined as the unweighted arithmetic
averages of the prices in effect on the first-day-of-the-month for each month within such period, unless prices were
defined by contractual arrangements. For hydrocarbon products sold under contract, the contract prices, including
fixed and determinable escalations, exclusive of inflation adjustments, were used until expiration of the contract. Upon
contract expiration, the prices were adjusted to the 12-month unweighted arithmetic average as previously described.
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Adams furnished us with the above mentioned average prices in effect on December 31, 2010. These initial
SEC hydrocarbon prices were determined using the 12-month average first-day-of-the-month benchmark prices
appropriate to the geographic area where the hydrocarbons are sold. These benchmark prices are prior to the
adjustments for differentials as described herein. The table below summarizes the “benchmark prices” and “price
reference” used for the geographic areas included in the report. In certain geographic areas, the price reference and
benchmark prices may be defined by contractual arrangements. In cases where there are numerous contracts or price
references within the same geographic area, the benchmark price is represented by the unweighted arithmetic average
of the initial 12-month average first-day-of-the-month benchmark prices used.
The product prices that were actually used to determine the future gross revenue for each property reflect
adjustments to the benchmark prices for gravity, quality, local conditions, and/or distance from market, referred to
herein as “differentials.” The differentials used in the preparation of this report were furnished to us by Adams,
accepted as factual data and reviewed by us for their reasonableness; however, we have not conducted an independent
verification of the data used by Adams to determine these differentials.
In addition, the table below summarizes the net volume weighted benchmark prices adjusted for differentials
and referred to herein as the “average realized prices.” The average realized prices shown in the table below were
determined from the total future gross revenue before production taxes and the total net reserves for the geographic area
and presented in accordance with SEC disclosure requirements for each of the geographic areas included in the report.

Geographic Area
Total U.S. Domestic

Product
Oil/Condensate
Plant Products
Gas

Price
Reference
Various 1
Various 2
Various 3

Average
Benchmark Prices
$ 72.86 / Bbl
$ 71.55 / Bbl
$ 4.24 / MMBTU

Average
Realized Prices
$ 76.14 / Bbl
$ 71.55 / Bbl
$ 5.26 / MCF

1

Oil/Cond Benchmarks include Postings for: LOTT Arkansas Sweet, North Dakota – Williston Sweet, Chevron Light Louisiana Sweet, N
Louisiana, So Louisiana Light, Mississippi Light Sour, OK Sweet Central, OK Sweet, Gulfmark Contract_Lt Sweet_NYMEX, East Tx
Field, Giddings, Tx Upper Gulf Coast, So Tx Light, W Central Tx, W Tx Intermediate – Area 1, and Wyoming Southwestern Area

2

Plant Product Benchmarks include: W Tx Intermediate and Propane Mont Belvieu

3

Gas Benchmarks include: Carthage Hub, CIG, El Paso-Permian, Henry Hub, Houston Ship Channel, NGPL_MC, NGPL_STX,
NGPL_TexOk Zone, Southern Natural Gas, Texas Eastern, Transco Zone 4, Transwestern Permian Basin, and Trunkline ELA

The effects of derivative instruments designated as price hedges of oil and gas quantities are not reflected in
our individual property evaluations.
Costs
Operating costs for the leases and wells in this report were provided by Adams and include only those costs
directly applicable to the leases or wells. The operating costs include a portion of general and administrative costs
allocated directly to the leases and wells. For operated properties, the operating costs include an appropriate level of
corporate general administrative and overhead costs. The operating costs for non-operated properties include the
COPAS overhead costs that are allocated directly to the leases and wells under terms of operating agreements. The
operating costs furnished to us were accepted as factual data and were used without independent verification. No
deduction was made for loan repayments, interest expenses, or exploration and development prepayments that were not
charged directly to the leases or wells.
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Development costs were furnished to us by Adams and are based on authorizations for expenditure for the
proposed work or actual costs for similar projects. The development costs furnished to us were accepted as factual data
and were used without independent verification. The estimated net cost of abandonment after salvage was included for
properties where abandonment costs net of salvage were significant. The estimates of the net abandonment costs
furnished by Adams were accepted without independent verification. Ryder Scott has not performed a detailed study of
the abandonment costs or the salvage value and makes no warranty for Adams’ estimate.
The proved developed non-producing and undeveloped reserves in this report have been incorporated herein in
accordance with Adams’ plans to develop these reserves as of December 31, 2010. The implementation of Adams’
development plans as presented to us and incorporated herein is subject to the approval process adopted by Adams’
management. As the result of our inquiries during the course of preparing this report, Adams has informed us that the
development activities included herein have been subjected to and received the internal approvals required by Adams’
management at the appropriate local, regional and/or corporate level. In addition to the internal approvals as noted,
certain development activities may still be subject to specific partner AFE processes, Joint Operating Agreement (JOA)
requirements or other administrative approvals external to Adams. Additionally, Adams has informed us that they are
not aware of any legal, regulatory, political or economic obstacles that would significantly alter their plans.
Current costs used by Adams were held constant throughout the life of the properties.
Standards of Independence and Professional Qualification
Ryder Scott is an independent petroleum engineering consulting firm that has been providing petroleum
consulting services throughout the world for over seventy years. Ryder Scott is employee-owned and maintains offices
in Houston, Texas; Denver, Colorado; and Calgary, Alberta, Canada. We have over eighty engineers and geoscientists
on our permanent staff. By virtue of the size of our firm and the large number of clients for which we provide services,
no single client or job represents a material portion of our annual revenue. We do not serve as officers or directors of
any publicly-traded oil and gas company and are separate and independent from the operating and investment decisionmaking process of our clients. This allows us to bring the highest level of independence and objectivity to each
engagement for our services.
Ryder Scott actively participates in industry-related professional societies and organizes an annual public
forum focused on the subject of reserves evaluations and SEC regulations. Many of our staff have authored or coauthored technical papers on the subject of reserves related topics. We encourage our staff to maintain and enhance
their professional skills by actively participating in ongoing continuing education.
Prior to becoming an officer of the Company, Ryder Scott requires that staff engineers and geoscientists have
received professional accreditation in the form of a registered or certified professional engineer’s license or a registered
or certified professional geoscientist’s license, or the equivalent thereof, from an appropriate governmental authority or
a recognized self-regulating professional organization.
We are independent petroleum engineers with respect to Adams. Neither we nor any of our employees have
any interest in the subject properties and neither the employment to do this work nor the compensation is contingent on
our estimates of reserves for the properties that were reviewed.
The results of this study, presented herein, are based on technical analysis conducted by teams of geoscientists
and engineers from Ryder Scott. The professional qualifications of the undersigned, the technical person primarily
responsible for overseeing, reviewing and approving the evaluation of the reserves information discussed in this report,
are included as an attachment to this letter.
Terms of Usage
The results of our third party study, presented in report form herein, were prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements set forth in the SEC regulations and intended for public disclosure as an exhibit in filings made
with the SEC by Adams.
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We have provided Adams with a digital version of the original signed copy of this report letter. In the event
there are any differences between the digital version included in filings made by Adams and the original signed report
letter, the original signed report letter shall control and supersede the digital version.
The data and work papers used in the preparation of this report are available for examination by authorized
parties in our offices. Please contact us if we can be of further service.
Very truly yours,
RYDER SCOTT COMPANY, L.P.
TBPE Firm Registration No. F-1580

\s\ Fred W. Ziehe
Fred W. Ziehe, P.E.
TBPE License No. 63630
Managing Senior Vice President [SEAL]
FWZ/sm
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Professional Qualifications of Primary Technical Person
The conclusions presented in this report are the result of technical analysis conducted by teams of geoscientists and
engineers from Ryder Scott Company, L.P. Mr. Fred W. Ziehe was the primary technical person responsible for
overseeing the estimate of the reserves, future production and income prepared by Ryder Scott presented herein.
Mr. Ziehe, an employee of Ryder Scott Company L.P. (Ryder Scott) since 1976, is a Managing Sr. Vice President and
also serves as an Engineering Group Coordinator responsible for coordinating and supervising staff and consulting
engineers of the company in ongoing reservoir evaluation studies worldwide. Before joining Ryder Scott, Mr. Ziehe
served as a Reservoir Engineer with Exxon Company U.S.A. For more information regarding Mr. Ziehe’s geographic
and
job
specific
experience,
please
refer
to
the
Ryder
Scott
Company
website
at
www.ryderscott.com/Experience/Employees.
Mr. Ziehe earned a Bachelor of Science degree in Petroleum Engineering from Texas A&M University in 1974, with
Magna Cum Laude honors and is a registered Professional Engineer in the State of Texas. He is also a member of the
Society of Petroleum Engineers.
In addition to gaining experience and competency through prior work experience, the Texas Board of Professional
Engineers requires a minimum of fifteen hours of continuing education annually, including at least one hour in the area
of professional ethics, which Mr. Ziehe fulfills. As part of his 2010 continuing education hours, Mr. Ziehe attended 8
hours of formalized training including the 2010 RSC Reserves Conference and various professional society
presentations specifically relating to the definitions and disclosure guidelines contained in the United States Securities
and Exchange Commission (SEC) Title 17, Code of Federal Regulations, Modernization of Oil and Gas Reporting,
Final Rule released January 14, 2009 in the Federal Register and professional ethics. Mr. Ziehe attended an additional
14 hours of formalized in-house training during 2010, covering such topics as the various oil and gas producing basins
in the United States and certain petroleum economics evaluation software. In addition to this training, Mr. Ziehe,
during 2009, also attended 16 hours of internally presented formalized training and 4 hours at a public forum and
professional society presentations concerning the Modernization of the SEC regulations, which related specifically to
the new definitions and disclosures included therein.
Based on his educational background, professional training and more than 36 years of practical experience in the
estimation and evaluation of petroleum reserves, Mr. Ziehe has attained the professional qualifications as a Reserves
Estimator and Reserves Auditor as set forth in Article III of the “Standards Pertaining to the Estimating and Auditing of
Oil and Gas Reserves Information” promulgated by the Society of Petroleum Engineers as of February 19, 2007.

PETROLEUM RESERVES DEFINITIONS
As Adapted From:
RULE 4-10(a) of REGULATION S-X PART 210
UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION (SEC)

PREAMBLE
On January 14, 2009, the United States Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) published
the “Modernization of Oil and Gas Reporting; Final Rule” in the Federal Register of National Archives
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and Records Administration (NARA). The “Modernization of Oil and Gas Reporting; Final Rule”
includes revisions and additions to the definition section in Rule 4-10 of Regulation S-X, revisions and
additions to the oil and gas reporting requirements in Regulation S-K, and amends and codifies Industry
Guide 2 in Regulation S-K. The “Modernization of Oil and Gas Reporting; Final Rule”, including all
references to Regulation S-X and Regulation S-K, shall be referred to herein collectively as the “SEC
regulations”. The SEC regulations take effect for all filings made with the United States Securities and
Exchange Commission as of December 31, 2009, or after January 1, 2010. Reference should be made to
the full text under Title 17, Code of Federal Regulations, Regulation S-X Part 210, Rule 4-10(a) for the
complete definitions (direct passages excerpted in part or wholly from the aforementioned SEC
document are denoted in italics herein).

Reserves are estimated remaining quantities of oil and gas and related substances anticipated to
be economically producible, as of a given date, by application of development projects to known
accumulations. All reserve estimates involve an assessment of the uncertainty relating the likelihood
that the actual remaining quantities recovered will be greater or less than the estimated quantities
determined as of the date the estimate is made. The uncertainty depends chiefly on the amount of
reliable geologic and engineering data available at the time of the estimate and the interpretation of these
data. The relative degree of uncertainty may be conveyed by placing reserves into one of two principal
classifications, either proved or unproved. Unproved reserves are less certain to be recovered than
proved reserves and may be further sub-classified as probable and possible reserves to denote
progressively increasing uncertainty in their recoverability. Under the SEC regulations as of
December 31, 2009, or after January 1, 2010, a company may optionally disclose estimated quantities of
probable or possible oil and gas reserves in documents publicly filed with the SEC. The SEC
regulations continue to prohibit disclosure of estimates of oil and gas resources other than reserves and
any estimated values of such resources in any document publicly filed with the SEC unless such
information is required to be disclosed in the document by foreign or state law as noted in §229.1202
Instruction to Item 1202.
Reserves estimates will generally be revised only as additional geologic or engineering data
become available or as economic conditions change.
Reserves may be attributed to either natural energy or improved recovery methods. Improved
recovery methods include all methods for supplementing natural energy or altering natural forces in the
reservoir to increase ultimate recovery. Examples of such methods are pressure maintenance, natural
gas cycling, waterflooding, thermal methods, chemical flooding, and the use of miscible and immiscible
displacement fluids. Other improved recovery methods may be developed in the future as petroleum
technology continues to evolve.
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Reserves may be attributed to either conventional or unconventional petroleum accumulations.
Petroleum accumulations are considered as either conventional or unconventional based on the nature of
their in-place characteristics, extraction method applied, or degree of processing prior to sale. Examples
of unconventional petroleum accumulations include coalbed or coalseam methane (CBM/CSM), basincentered gas, shale gas, gas hydrates, natural bitumen and oil shale deposits. These unconventional
accumulations may require specialized extraction technology and/or significant processing prior to sale.
Reserves do not include quantities of petroleum being held in inventory.
Because of the differences in uncertainty, caution should be exercised when aggregating
quantities of petroleum from different reserves categories.

RESERVES (SEC DEFINITIONS)
Securities and Exchange Commission Regulation S-X §210.4-10(a)(26) defines reserves as
follows:

Reserves. Reserves are estimated remaining quantities of oil and gas and related substances
anticipated to be economically producible, as of a given date, by application of development projects to
known accumulations. In addition, there must exist, or there must be a reasonable expectation that
there will exist, the legal right to produce or a revenue interest in the production, installed means of
delivering oil and gas or related substances to market, and all permits and financing required to
implement the project.
Note to paragraph (a)(26): Reserves should not be assigned to adjacent reservoirs isolated by major,
potentially sealing, faults until those reservoirs are penetrated and evaluated as economically
producible. Reserves should not be assigned to areas that are clearly separated from a known
accumulation by a non-productive reservoir (i.e., absence of reservoir, structurally low reservoir, or
negative test results). Such areas may contain prospective resources (i.e., potentially recoverable
resources from undiscovered accumulations).

PROVED RESERVES (SEC DEFINITIONS)
Securities and Exchange Commission Regulation S-X §210.4-10(a)(22) defines proved oil and
gas reserves as follows:

Proved oil and gas reserves. Proved oil and gas reserves are those quantities of oil and gas, which, by
analysis of geoscience and engineering data, can be estimated with reasonable certainty to be
economically producible—from a given date forward, from known reservoirs, and under existing
economic conditions, operating methods, and government regulations—prior to the time at which
contracts providing the right to operate expire, unless evidence indicates that renewal is reasonably
certain, regardless of whether deterministic or probabilistic methods are used for the estimation. The
project to extract the hydrocarbons must have commenced or the operator must be reasonably certain
that it will commence the project within a reasonable time.
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(i) The area of the reservoir considered as proved includes:
(A) The area identified by drilling and limited by fluid contacts, if any, and
(B) Adjacent undrilled portions of the reservoir that can, with reasonable certainty, be
judged to be continuous with it and to contain economically producible oil or gas on the
basis of available geoscience and engineering data.
PROVED RESERVES (SEC DEFINITIONS) CONTINUED
(ii) In the absence of data on fluid contacts, proved quantities in a reservoir are limited by the
lowest known hydrocarbons (LKH) as seen in a well penetration unless geoscience, engineering,
or performance data and reliable technology establishes a lower contact with reasonable
certainty.
(iii) Where direct observation from well penetrations has defined a highest known oil (HKO)
elevation and the potential exists for an associated gas cap, proved oil reserves may be assigned
in the structurally higher portions of the reservoir only if geoscience, engineering, or
performance data and reliable technology establish the higher contact with reasonable certainty.
(iv) Reserves which can be produced economically through application of improved recovery
techniques (including, but not limited to, fluid injection) are included in the proved classification
when:
(A) Successful testing by a pilot project in an area of the reservoir with properties no
more favorable than in the reservoir as a whole, the operation of an installed program in
the reservoir or an analogous reservoir, or other evidence using reliable technology
establishes the reasonable certainty of the engineering analysis on which the project or
program was based; and
(B) The project has been approved for development by all necessary parties and entities,
including governmental entities.
(v) Existing economic conditions include prices and costs at which economic producibility from
a reservoir is to be determined. The price shall be the average price during the 12-month period
prior to the ending date of the period covered by the report, determined as an unweighted
arithmetic average of the first-day-of-the-month price for each month within such period, unless
prices are defined by contractual arrangements, excluding escalations based upon future
conditions.
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RESERVES STATUS DEFINITIONS AND GUIDELINES
As Adapted From:
RULE 4-10(a) of REGULATION S-X PART 210
UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION (SEC)
and
PETROLEUM RESOURCES MANAGEMENT SYSTEM (SPE-PRMS)
Sponsored and Approved by:
SOCIETY OF PETROLEUM ENGINEERS (SPE)
WORLD PETROLEUM COUNCIL (WPC)
AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF PETROLEUM GEOLOGISTS (AAPG)
SOCIETY OF PETROLEUM EVALUATION ENGINEERS (SPEE)

Reserves status categories define the development and producing status of wells and reservoirs.
Reference should be made to Title 17, Code of Federal Regulations, Regulation S-X Part 210, Rule 410(a) and the SPE-PRMS as the following reserves status definitions are based on excerpts from the
original documents (direct passages excerpted from the aforementioned SEC and SPE-PRMS documents
are denoted in italics herein).

DEVELOPED RESERVES (SEC DEFINITIONS)
Securities and Exchange Commission Regulation S-X §210.4-10(a)(6) defines developed oil and
gas reserves as follows:

Developed oil and gas reserves are reserves of any category that can be expected to be
recovered:
(i) Through existing wells with existing equipment and operating methods or in which the
cost of the required equipment is relatively minor compared to the cost of a new well;
and
(ii) Through installed extraction equipment and infrastructure operational at the time of
the reserves estimate if the extraction is by means not involving a well.

Developed Producing (SPE-PRMS Definitions)
While not a requirement for disclosure under the SEC regulations, developed oil and gas reserves
may be further sub-classified according to the guidance contained in the SPE-PRMS as Producing or
Non-Producing.
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Developed Producing Reserves
Developed Producing Reserves are expected to be recovered from completion intervals that are
open and producing at the time of the estimate.
Improved recovery reserves are considered producing only after the improved recovery project
is in operation.
Developed Non-Producing
Developed Non-Producing Reserves include shut-in and behind-pipe reserves.
Shut-In
Shut-in Reserves are expected to be recovered from:
(1) completion intervals which are open at the time of the estimate, but which have not
started producing;
(2) wells which were shut-in for market conditions or pipeline connections; or
(3) wells not capable of production for mechanical reasons.
Behind-Pipe
Behind-pipe Reserves are expected to be recovered from zones in existing wells, which will
require additional completion work or future re-completion prior to start of production.
In all cases, production can be initiated or restored with relatively low expenditure compared to
the cost of drilling a new well.

UNDEVELOPED RESERVES (SEC DEFINITIONS)
Securities and Exchange Commission Regulation S-X §210.4-10(a)(31) defines undeveloped oil
and gas reserves as follows:

Undeveloped oil and gas reserves are reserves of any category that are expected to be recovered
from new wells on undrilled acreage, or from existing wells where a relatively major expenditure
is required for recompletion.
(i)
Reserves on undrilled acreage shall be limited to those directly offsetting
development spacing areas that are reasonably certain of production when drilled,
unless evidence using reliable technology exists that establishes reasonable certainty of
economic producibility at greater distances.
(ii) Undrilled locations can be classified as having undeveloped reserves only if a
development plan has been adopted indicating that they are scheduled to be drilled
within five years, unless the specific circumstances, justify a longer time.
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(iii) Under no circumstances shall estimates for undeveloped reserves be attributable to
any acreage for which an application of fluid injection or other improved recovery
technique is contemplated, unless such techniques have been proved effective by actual
projects in the same reservoir or an analogous reservoir, as defined in paragraph (a)(2)
of this section, or by other evidence using reliable technology establishing reasonable
certainty.
1

7

